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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record
of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature
of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which these companies operate. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM
is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. GEM-listed companies are not generally required to
issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have access
to the GEM website at “www.hkgem.com” in order to obtain up-to-
date information on GEM-listed issuers.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Launch Tech
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Launch”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:
(1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading,; and
(3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are
fair and reasonable.
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With an aim to be the pioneer of the automotive aftermarket in the
PRC, Launch Tech Company Limited (the “Company” or “Launch”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is committed to the provision

of the most superior and advanced products, technologies and

services to the automobile service and manufacturing industry as
well as car owners in the PRC and the world.

Capitalizing on its strong research and development team and
market sensitivity, and the cost competitiveness of manufacturing
in the PRC, Launch aims at being a new driving force of the world’s
automotive aftermarket.
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Liu Xin (Louis Liu) % (25 2)
Chairman ZEF £

Operating results

In the fiscal year of 2008, the Group recorded a turnover of
RMB439,000,000 and net profit of RMB13,000,000, representing
a 6.3% growth and a 79% drop respectively compared to last year.
The operating results were dissatisfactory, mainly due to the high
production cost, dropping gross profit margin, high administrative
expenses, rising finance cost, big exchange loss, and the increase
of provision for impairment on receivables. The Board of Directors
will propose a final dividend of RMBO0.02 per share at the annual
general meeting to be held on 18 June 2009, Thursday.

Business review

In 2008, the Group established JTAE (L) /SHEE THIFEhR (the
“Institute”) in Beijing and confirmed the four research directions
in diesel-engine high voltage electronic project, diesel-engine
single pump electronic control project, gasoline-engine electronic

control project and motorcycle engine electronic control project.
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Chairman’s Statement
EERARE

The establishment of the Institute is an important milestone for the
Group to enter the automotive front-end market and also a boost
to its morale.

In 2008, global sales of the Group’s X431 Electronic Eye continued
to maintain stable growth. The sales of X-431 Tool also maintained
a higher growth. Crecorder, being very well-received in the US auto
repair and maintenance DIY market, was awarded the “US Top
20 Tool for 2008” by US Motor magazine. The new product X-431
Heavy-Duty heavy auto diagnostic computer was also awarded the
“Top 10 Auto Maintenance Test Equipment” in the PRC by “/4E
HEREE.

In 2008, the Group successfully launched several new products.
The new product X-431 Diagun diagnostic gun has multiple
patented technologies, which can test two motor vehicles
simultaneously and possesses universal joints and was recognized
by the market. A good sales performance is expected by the Group

in coming year.

In 2008, the Group achieved major breakthrough in the
development and sales of 4-wheel aligner and launched the more
stable, sophisticated and functional X-631 4-wheel aligner in the
international market. The product was well received in overseas
markets such as Europe and the US. The X-631 4-wheel aligner
has also become a competitive product in the global market and
will become another new profit growth area of the Group in coming

year.

In 2008, the Group integrated the advantages in manufacturing
and management of mechanical products in both Shenzhen
and Shanghai production bases and relocated parts of the
manufacturing of mechanical products from Shenzhen to Launch
Shanghai Base. The competitive advantage in mechanical
products further increased using the advanced production
management technology in Launch Shanghai Base and the market

share also grew steadily.
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In 2008, the Group adjusted the organizational structure of
the headquarter. Having integrated the human resources,
production technology and research and development team in
the headquarter, the Group enhanced research and development

capability and speed of the products, as well as efficiency.

In 2008, the Group developed rapidly in the primary operation
of automotive production plant and adjusted the organizational
structure of sales. It also increased the investment of sales and
service teams, established procedures suitable for development
of primary operation and developed strategic cooperation and
business with most of the domestic automotive production plants.
Sales of primary operation achieved major breakthrough and laid
down foundation for the Group to enter into front-end automotive

market.

Prospects

The Group established JT/E (AL 5) /TEEE-FHFEER to lay down
good foundation for larger growth in its future results. It was
planned to achieve technology industrialization within three years
and construct the largest research base for electrical engine control

system in the PRC within five years.

In 2009, the Group will focus on the market and respond to the
financial crisis and other uncertainties in relation to cost control
and management, research and development in technology of
core products, sophisticate production, sales innovation etc. It will
maintain adequate competitiveness for its core business as well
as gradually promote research and development in automotive
front-end projects such as automotive electronic according to both
domestic and overseas situations, so as to maintain sustainability

for the Group.

The Group’s management system for IPD integrated product
research and development will be formally applied in 2009. The
IPD system will achieve the goals of shortened product launching
time, increased profit of product, effective product development
and providing greater value for customers and shareholders by

reorganizing group procedures and products.
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Chairman’s Statement
EERARE

In China market, the Group will develop more qualified distributors
on top of the developed distributors and will extend the sales
channels to second-tier and third-tier markets so as to increase
the influence of the Group’s products and channels. Meanwhile, it
will boost promotional activities for its products across the nation,
continue to explore opportunities in major trade expositions, invest
in professional media advertisement, boost sales activities such as
promotions, improve the training for sales staff and distributors and

strive to develop the China market, so as to achieve better results.

In overseas market, the Group will continue its focus on the
market and explore opportunities in major trade expositions to
explore overseas market, minimize the impact of international
financial and economic crisis towards the Group and turn crisis into
opportunities through cost control, research and development of
technology and regional sales strategies.

Looking ahead, all fellow directors and staff of Launch will closely
cooperate and create ceaselessly. By implementing reforms in all
directions and adopting innovative business planning, the Group is
going to enter a stage of steady development and so to bring even
better returns for our shareholders and investors.

Liu Xin (Louis Liu)
Chairman
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MARKETS

In 2008, for domestic market, the Group focused on the market
and adjusted the market structure by segmental integration,
changed the sales and services strategies, developed and
supported about 140 distributors, revoked certain second-tier
branches and certain stores and shops, streamlined the structure,
lowered cost of sales and improved efficiency.

In 2008, the Group focused on its operation and established
primary operation sales teams for each branch, assigned the major
customer operations originally managed by the headquarter to
be managed by the branches according to their segments and
appointed primary project managers, strengthened selling capacity
of major products and formulated development ideas for primary
operations.

In 2008, the Group held the 13th annual meeting and presented
new products such as the X-431 Diagun, AUTOBOOK and
X-631 4-wheel aligner, which was participated by over 500
customers and guests around the world. It has firmly established
the worldwide brand image of Launch and the market sales also
reached new high.
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Business Review
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In 2008, for overseas market, the Group held 43 sessions of
National Training Tour in the PRC market, participated in the
49th Spring Auto Maintenance Fair, the 50th Autumn Auto
Maintenance Fair and the Frankfurt Shanghai Exhibition, held the
Spring Distributors’ Conference in the PRC region and sponsored
the 2008 Annual Meeting of the Professional Committee for
Transportation. In overseas market, the Group participated
Frankfurt Germany Exhibition, Australian AutoEquip Expo, Romania
AutoDiga Exhibition, 8 exhibitions of the 8th Leipzig International
Automotive Parts and Repairing Equipment Professional Expo,
held overseas distributors’ annual meeting in Germany and
sponsored the 2008 Nurburgring 24-hour endurance race.

In 2008, for social responsibilities and contributions, product
innovation and quality service, the Group was awarded the “Top 10
Auto Maintenance Test Equipment” and “Top 10 Auto Maintenance
Enterprise” by the Auto and Driving Repair magazine, “Top 10
National Enterprise” in the PRC auto maintenance industry jointly
elected by HC360.com and China Automotive Maintenance
and Repair Equipment Association and “Innovative Technology
Product” elected by China Automotive Maintenance and Repair
Equipment Association and China Automotive Maintenance and

Repair Trade Association.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The major research and developments of the Group in 2008 are as

follows:

In 2008, the Group completed the research and development of
X431 Diagun which was developed with auto repair technology.
The product is tiny and can test two motor vehicles simultaneously
in fast speed. It has universal joints and is well-received by
customers in the market. Due to its leading technology and high
performance, it will be a major product for the Group to compete in
the market.

In 2008, X431 has a total of over 500 versions as the software
was developed to a large extent. Meanwhile, the Group adjusted
the software structure and allowed convenient transfer between
multiple product platforms as well as increased the processing
speed of the software.
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In 2008, the Group completed the research and development
of AUTOBOOK, an open-diagnostic platform and focused on
diagnosis of the basic function of the main electrical control system

of motor vehicles.

In 2008, the Group established JLAE (b ) REEFHFEFT and
began research and development on related control and propelling
systems of auto diesel-engine and etc. The software company of
the Group also focused on the primary operation of the existing
motor vehicle production plant and commenced continuous
research and development of special diagnostic tools, motor
vehicle meters, reverse radar and tire pressure testing products.

In 2008, the Group completed research and development of the
X-631 4-wheel aligner. As its technology is more advanced and
sophisticated and with better functions and performance, it was
well-received by worldwide customers particularly in the Europe
and US markets.

In 2008, the Group launched the new Value 100 cooling agent
recycler and injector which has many merits such as sophistication,
good-looking, integration, stability and reliability. The Group can
achieve better sales and profits in the cooling agent equipment
domain through this product.

In 2008, for tools development, the Group developed a number of
professional tools for auto repair, which increased the profits of tool
products.

MANAGEMENT

In 2008, the Group performed comprehensive business reform
planning, market analyzing planning and internal and external
environment analysis and proposed requirement, time and goal of
reform on the ten subjects of strategic planning, corporate culture
establishment, human resource management, system procedure
management and administration, market and sales management,
full budget management, cost management and control, quality
management, on-site basic management and technology
management, so as to respond to the financial crisis and economic

crisis by comprehensive reform.

Business Review
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Business Review
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In 2008, the Group formulated relevant standards, proposed
solutions and performed adjustments and clearance to allow
more in-depth and scientific management for the Group based on
the goal of reform and through analysis of the internal problems
of the Company. The Group performed organizational structure
adjustment, strengthened supply chain management and
performed stringent cost control and various basic management so
as to adapt to sharp changing market situation.

In 2008, the Group focused on integration of the ERP, CRM and 10
system and strengthened information management.

PROSPECTS

In 2009, the Group will continue the reform of the ten subjects
based on the 2008 reform so as to achieve the goal of reform of the

ten subjects.

In 2009, the Group will take advantage of the stimulation
planning and policy for national industry, strengthen the research
capability for technology of core products, actively develop new
auto electronic technology products and extend its product and
business. The Group will fully enhance the competitiveness of its
brands and products.

In 2009, the Group will strengthen research and development in
core diagnostic products, supplement research and development
teams and enhance our leading position when comparing with
our competitors. The Group will develop the second generation
product of X431 Electronic Eye and continue to improve and
develop the second generation of X431 Diagun. The Group will also
launch the X531\231V3.0 version to allow better competitiveness
for the 4-wheel aligner product. For the mechanical lift product, the
Group will strengthen cost control and management and develop
KWA 5 series high, medium and low-end new tire balancer so as to

meet market demand and respond to global competition.

In 2009, the Group will formally connect to the IPD system
and shorten the launching time of products, increase profits of
products, develop products effectively and provide better value for
its customers and shareholders.
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In 2009, the Group will team up with distributors in the PRC region
market and give more support such as credit limit, advertisement,
promotional information, sales expense, staff and management
support to distributors. Meanwhile, the Group will launch various
marketing activities such as exhibitions, annual meetings, product
promotion tours, technology contests and professional media
advertisement so as to enhance the brand name, reputation and
influence of LAUNCH.

In 2009, the Group will formulate related sales policies and
cooperate with distributors according to the economic and political
characteristics in different regions of the overseas markets and
enhance the international brand name and influence of LAUNCH.
It will also actively cooperate with the strategic planning of the
headquarter, facilitate exports and maintain growth in overseas
market results.

—TENF - KREBETEERDSMEHA
HEER  KTREBEZHOXRE  NER
BE - EES EEEH - 2HEER - AR
RTEEXRS  RAME BYELHERZA
AN SHRORSERE 8 E
mACEHES - RIHE  BERRESS
M558 - A LAUCNH TAERMEE - =
BEMTEN -

ZEThF - SEBREBEEINTISTRES
TIBAE - BUATFEL + Bl E BB & S BUR
MEHEEEREE - WA LAUNCH R IEEIRR
MEBEFEMFE  BHEEE S EEIBER
2 LD - REEITISEEZER -

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ \E 43R 0



Financial Review
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group adopts a prudent financial management policy and has
a healthy financial position. As at 31 December 2008, the Group
had cash and bank balances of approximately RMB98,000,000.
As at 31 December 2008, shareholders’ equity of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB506,000,000. Current assets
were approximately RMB603,000,000. The Group’s current
liabilities of approximately RMB373,000,000, comprised of short-
term bank borrowings of approximately RMB279,000,000, and
the rest were mainly account payables and accruals. The Group’s
long term borrowings were about RMB41,000,000. The Group’s
net asset value per share was approximately RMB0.84. The
Group’s gearing ratio, which represented the percentage of bank

borrowings over total assets, was approximately 34.7%.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, most of the Group’s
income was denominated in RMB whereas all overseas sales
were transacted in USD, and expenses were paid in RMB. As
the exchange rate between RMB and USD experienced more
significant adjustment during 2008, the management will try
to minimise the Group’s foreign exchange risk through price
adjustment with overseas customers for the transactions settled
in USD, and it has reached initial understanding with these
customers. Therefore, the Directors consider that the Group is not
under substantial foreign exchange risk exposure.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had 981 and 14 employees
(2007: 1,533 and 15 respectively) based in the PRC and overseas
respectively. Staff costs, excluding directors’ and supervisors’
emoluments, were approximately RMB73 million (2007:
approximately RMB72 million).
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The Group remunerates employees by their performance and
experience. It has adopted a share option scheme whereby
employees of the Group may be granted options to acquire
shares. The Group also offers staff benefits such as professional
training programs to enhance staffs’ skills, knowledge and sense of
belonging.

OTHERS

HETAEEBRAERS AR AT, ajoint venture between
the Group and SK Networks Co., Ltd., a Korean company, was
established in Shanghai in December 2005. In order to expand
its auto repair chain store network, the joint venture increased
registered capital to RMB118.5 million. The Group in 2008 invested
additional RMB5 million, and current shareholder = 2% (FRE ) #%
ZHMR/AF] in 2008 injected RMB64,000,000 so that the Group’s
interests in this associate was reduced to 13.8%. The reduction
of holding resulted in revenue of approximately RMB4.24 million
for the Group. By leveraging on the advanced technologies of the
Group in auto repair and maintenance and the partner’s superior
expertise in repair service couching, managerial experience, the
joint venture is engaged in the provision of professional auto
repair, maintenance and decorations service to its customers.
The associate commenced operation in 2006, and as it was still
in the start-up stage, a loss of approximately RMB7.12 million
was incurred by the Group. The management expects that the
associate will turnaround in 2009-2010 along with the growth in
business.

In 2008, apart from the investment of the Group as mentioned
above, the Group did not hold any other material investments, so
as of 31 December 2007.

As at 31 December 2008, apart from the pledged bank deposits
of approximately RMB21 million (2007: approximately RMB16
million), and the pledge of certain land and buildings totalling
approximately RMB56 million (2007: RMB58 million), the Group
had no other significant assets pledged, so as of 31 December
2007.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

2S5 EEkaEEAER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xin, also known as Louis Liu, aged 40, is an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company. Mr. Liu is the founder of
the Company and has around 10 years of experience in corporate
management, business development, product development and
marketing in the computer and automotive diagnostic and testing
industries. He is a graduate of Chengdu Technology University
(currently known as Sichuan University) with a bachelor’s degree
in applied physics. Mr. Liu is mainly responsible for the strategic
planning, overall management, establishment of strategic alliances
and development of overseas marketing and sales channel. Mr. Liu
Xin is the brother of Mr. Liu Jun and Ms. Liu Yong.

Mr. Liu Jun, also known as Charles Liu, aged 38, is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Liu
is the co-founder of the Company and is the brother of Mr. Liu
Xin and Ms. Liu Yong. Mr. Liu has around 10 years of experience
in corporate management, business development and product
development in automotive diagnostic and testing industries. He
is a graduate of Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in
radio electronics engineering. Mr. Liu once served as the head of
the Company’s R&D department and headed the development
of the first generation of Electronic Eye in November 1994, and
was honoured as one of the Shenzhen Ten Outstanding Young
Technology Experts in 1998. He is currently responsible for the
day-to-day operations of Company, and also supervises the
Company’s R&D and finance.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Professor Wang Xue Zhi, aged 72, is an executive Director and
chief engineer of the Company. Professor Wang is an expert in
automotive diagnostic and testing engineering with approximately
30 years of experience in related studies and research works,
and has published 20 related books and academic papers.
Prior to joining the Company in May 1998, Professor Wang
served as a professor of Xian Highway Transportation Institute
(currently known as Changan University) and the vice principal
of the board of experts of the China Automobile Maintenance
and Repair Equipment Industry Association under the Ministry
of Transportation. He heads the Company’s overall product
development, and was responsible for leading the development of
IVIEW-100 wheel alignment system and other similar large-scale
automotive diagnostic and testing systems.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Liu Yong, aged 46, is a non-executive Director since June
1997, and is the sister of Mr. Liu Xin and Mr. Liu Jun. Ms. Liu
once studied in Dalian Foreign Language Institute, and served in
the sales department and public relations department of Guilin
Holidays Inn and Guilin Rong Hu Hotel, respectively, and as the
general manager of Sunshine Travel Agency. Ms. Liu has extensive
experience in corporate management, sales and marketing
and public relations management. She is currently a director of
Shenzhen De Shi Yu.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu, aged 64, is an independent non-executive
Director since March 2002. Mr. Zhang is the vice-chairman of
China Machinery Industrial Association since April 2001, and
prior to April 2001, he served as the vice commissioner of the
State Machinery Industry Bureau, the chief of Automobile Industry
Division of the Ministry of Machinery Industry.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

2S5 EEkaEEAER

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Professor Hu Zi Zheng, aged 71, is an independent non-
executive Director since March 2002. Mr. Hu is currently the
professor and doctoral student mentor of automotive studies of
the school of mechanics at Jilin Industrial University. Mr. Hu is
also the appointed specialist of China Automobile Engineering
Association and member of the board of editors of “Mechanical
Engineering Paper”. He also served as the vice principal of the
State Key Laboratory of Dynamic Automotive Simulation and
dean of automotive school at the Jilin Industrial University. Mr.
Hu graduated from the Jilin Industrial University with a degree in
automobile engineering, and has around 30 years of experience in

automotive science research and teaching.

Mr. Yim Hing Wah, aged 44, has more than 15 years experience
in auditing, accounting, taxation, business consulting and financial
management. He had worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
manager for 9 years from July 1992 to December 2000. After that,
he was the financial controller of Jiangsu Nandasoft Company
Limited and Chinasoft International Limited, the companies listed
on GEM. Currently, he is a partner of Chan, Yim, Cheng & Co., an
accounting firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Yim is a graduate of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, a fellow
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of Hong Kong Securities Institute.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

MEMBERS OF SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Supervisory committee in the PRC has similar functions as audit
committee, which mainly reviews the financial results of the
Company and the decisions made by the Board. Supervisors
can represent the interest of shareholders or employees, and
independent supervisors are recruited from outside and not related
to any of the directors, supervisors, promoters and employees
of the Company. Mr. Wang Xi Lin is appointed as a Supervisor
through the recommendation of the Company’s employees.
Ms. Hou Wen Tao and Mr. Guo Jian Yuan are appointed as

independent Supervisors.

Ms. Hou Wen Tao, aged 69, is a Supervisor since March 2002.
Ms. Hou retired from the Shenzhen Science and Technology
Bureau since August 2001, where she served as its vice
commissioner, vice principal and inspector since 1991. Prior to July
1986, she served as a senior engineer at the Changchun Applied
Chemistry Research Institute of the China Science Academy and a
visiting scholar of Proyaume de Belgique in Belgium between April
1981 and February 1982. Ms. Hou obtained a bachelor’s degree in
atomic physics from Jilin University.

Mr. Guo Jian Yuan, aged 61, is a Supervisor since March 2002.
Mr. Guo is currently the chairman of Shenzhen Cosber Industrial
Co., Ltd., a distributor of automobile maintenance equipment in
the PRC, vice-chairman of China Automobile Maintenance and
Repair Equipment Industry Association and chairman of Shenzhen
Automobile and Motorcycle Maintenance and Repair Industry
Association, in charge of their overall management. He also served
as the director and president of Shenzhen Tellus Holding Co.,
Ltd., a developer of mechanical tools in the PRC, in charge of
their overall management. Mr. Guo has extensive experience in

corporate management.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

2S5 EEkaEEAER

MEMBERS OF SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
(Continued)

Mr. Wang Xi Lin, aged 45, is the general manager of the
Company’s automotive diagnostic product division and a
Supervisor since March 2002. Mr. Wang graduated from the
China Mining Industry University in Beijing with a master’s degree
in engineering. Prior to joining the Company in October 2000,
Mr. Wang served as a senior engineer at several state-owned
companies and led the R&D works in relation to large electronic
control and electronic automation systems. Mr. Wang was formerly
the head of the Company’s R&D department, and had successfully
led the development of the ADC2000 auto diagnostic computer.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Huang Zhao Huan, aged 36, is the head of the Company’s
domestic marketing centre. Ms. Huang is a graduate of Nanchong
Teaching University with a bachelor’s degree in mathematics. She
is currently responsible for the development and management of
the Company’s domestic sales network and marketing activities
and customer relationships of its major customers. She joined the
Company in 1996.

Mr. Hu Kai, aged 35, is the head of the Company’s production
and procurement department. Mr. Hu has a degree in economic
management for Guangxi Teaching University and joined the
Company as a manager of purchase division in 1995. He is mainly
responsible for overseeing the Company’s production planning and
management.

Mr. Guo Feng, aged 37, graduated from Xian Electronic
Technology University majoring in Communication Engineering. He
has been responsible for R&D and implementation of automatic
control system of large buildings. He joined Launch in 1999 and
worked his way up from engineer, division manager to general
manager now. He has successfully led the R&D and improvement
of a series of products including engine analyzer and so on.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Jiang Shiwen, aged 36, is the Company’s Chief Information
Officer. Mr. Jiang graduated from Dalian University of Technology
and Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a master’s degree in
mathematics and a MBA degree. Prior to joining the Company in
2002, he had worked in several major privately-owned and foreign
enterprises as development engineer, in charge of the R&D work
relating to large scale management system, e-commerce system
and embedded system. Mr. Jiang oversees the construction,
implementation and maintenance of the entire IT system of the
Company. He has led the Company in the successful planning,
design and online operation of a number of large IT networks
including ERP, CRM and OA systems.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

Mr. Liu Chun Ming, aged 33, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Liu is a qualified
accountant and obtained a bachelor’s degree (Honours) in
accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in 1997.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and, prior to joining the Company in March 2002, has
worked in an international audit firm for few years.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Jun, executive Director, compliance officer and authorised
representative. Mr. Liu will be advising on and assisting the Board
in implementing procedures to ensure that the Company complies
with the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Company and responding efficiently to all inquiries
directed to the Company by the Stock Exchange.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Company on 21
March 2002, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the requirements as set out in Rules 5.23 to 5.25 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The principal duties of the committee are the review
and supervision of the Company’s reporting process and internal
control. The Group’s audit committee has held five meeting since
early 2008. The members of the audit committee are as follows:

BEREREY

ARBEN_EZ-_F=A-+—HiREAE
¥R EMRANE 523 EFE 525 (RFTEZ IR
R ABREBESE  EZEZES - B
ZEGUIERBERERARRIZMBE R
RAMPEZRTIE - EECEZEZEEN_F
SENFFVESEERARNEE - LB
KRBT :

Name Position in the audit committee Position in the Board
®E EREEERM E=em4
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu chairman independent non-executive Director
RANERE S BUIHITES
Professor Hu Zi Zheng member independent non-executive Director
HAF IESIR D= BUIFHITES
Mr. Yim Hing Wah member independent non-executive Director
BREERE B8 BUIEHITES
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Group commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves our corporate governance and internal controls practices.
Set out below are the principles of corporate governance as
adopted by the Company during the reporting year.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board
of Directors in establishing and monitoring the implementation of
strategies and plans to create values for shareholders.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the
operation of the Group’s businesses, proposing strategies to
the Board and the effective implementation of the strategies and
policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2008, there were seven members on the
Board, which are the Chairman, two other Executive Directors,
a Non-Executive Director (“NED”) and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors (“INEDs”).

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the
Group nor has any relationship with other directors and confirmed
their independences to the Group pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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J/J'_\‘ IHr #ﬁl:u

THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board met regularly during the year and on ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set
and review the overall strategic development of the Group and to
oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance shareholders’
value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the Executive
Directors. The Board met 8 times during the year and the Directors’
attendance is shown in the table on page 23. The NED and INEDs
may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in carrying out their functions. The Board has arranged for
appropriate insurance coverage for the Directors

The Company appointed each of the Non-Executive directors
during the Annual General Meeting or by the Board for new
appointment during the year. The term of each of these
appointments shall be expired up to the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and can offer for re-election in the Annual General
Meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee (“Committee”) comprises the three INEDs,
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu, Professor Hu Zi Zheng and Mr. Yim Hing Wah
with Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu serving as the chairman of the Committee.
Each member brings to the Committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control
and financial issues of the Group. Mr. Yim is a member of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants, a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong
Securities Institute. Mr. Yim has more than 15 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, taxation, business consulting and financial
management. He possesses the appropriate professional
qualification on accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 5.05 (2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
Member’s attendance at the five meetings held during the year is

set out in the table on page 23.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Committee is required to assist the Board to fulfill its
responsibilities related to external financial reporting, associated
announcements and system of internal control. During the year, the
Committee reviewed the quarterly and annual reports. Additional
meetings may also be held by the Committee from time to time
to discuss special projects or other issues that the Committee
considered necessary.

The Committee is also responsible for the development,
implementation and monitoring of the Groups’ policy on external
audit. The Committee recommended the appointment and
reappointment of the Group’s external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a Remuneration Committee.
The Board is responsible for determining the Company’s policy on
remuneration of directors and reviewing all remuneration packages
of directors. The Company currently does not have any plan to set
up a Remuneration Committee considering the small size of the
Board.

In determining the remuneration of each Director, the Board
looks into individual competence and his/her contributions to the
Company, together with the benchmark of the similar executive
positions in the market.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for considering the suitability of an
individual to act as a Director, and approving and terminating the
appointment of a Director. The Company has not established a
Nomination Committee. The Company currently does not have any
plans to set up a Nomination Committee considering the small size
of the Board.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Chairman is responsible for identifying suitable candidates for
member of the Board when there is a vacancy or an additional
director is considered necessary. The Chairman proposes the
appointment of such candidates to each member of the Board
for consideration. Each member of the Board will review the
qualifications of the relevant candidates for determining the
suitability to the Group on the basis of his or her qualifications,
experiences and background.

e Launch Tech Company Limited #3I T STAEEHEAR (D AR A A
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MEETINGS ATTENDANCE SRHELRH

Board Audit Committee
EEg EREEE
Number of Meetings BERE 5 5
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Liu Xin &l ot 5 N/A
N3
Mr. Liu Jun 215 %4% 5 N/A
N3 B
Professor Wang Xue Zhi FEEBHE 5 N/A
N3
Non-executive director FHTES
Ms. Liu Yong 2ELZL 5 N/A
N3
Independent non-executive directors BIFHITES
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu SRANESEAE 4
Professor Hu Zi Zheng AT IEHUIR 4 5
Mr. Yim Hing Wah BREELE 4
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

CONFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH
MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
The Directors have confirmed, following specific inquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year under review.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external independent
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could lead
to any potential material adverse effect on the Company. During
the year under review, the Group is required to pay an aggregate
of approximately RMB1,267,000 to the external auditors for their

services including audit and non-audit services.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the
responsibilities of the external independent auditors to the
shareholders are set out on page 38.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the
necessary actions to ensure the compliance with the provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the
Stock Exchange.

° Launch Tech Company Limited &I TAERHZ IR (D B IR A R

BRETRESTH

ARAREHRMBIER EHRAEL548EFH
5.67 RFTESIN EMBETAEFETESRR
ZHIRESTRI([RESTR D ERESHETE
HRPNET TR  BRARFHEHL B EEH
% 2REFCHEIBRFNDBEFEATE
BTIRESTRIEIINAFIRE -

BB ET B =

ARREZEZEGARIIRBENERES
B N NP A A 1T RO () SR R
B BRZSIFEZHMETTHARAEMN
EREEEATHTZE - REEFEAR - &
S BRSNS ZBETRES R (B
BT RIFEF R AE XN A KOARE
1,267,0007T °

EERBYLHERIRENEE

EERAWEERINEDE L R BEN AR
MBEEHIINFI8H -

RE

AEBKEEERRTECER KT MW
B8\ NRIMAHER - ARRE T
BRI EE IR T AT RIS -



The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is engaged in the provision of products and services
serving the automotive aftermarket and the automobile industry in
the PRC and certain overseas countries. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the results of the Group and appropriations of the
Company for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively and the accompanying note 32 to the financial
statements.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB2
cents per Share to the shareholders on the register of members on
18 June 2009 amounting to RMB12,072,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 13
to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Liu Xin (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Wang Xue Zhi

Non-executive director:
Ms. Liu Yong

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu

Professor Hu Zi Zheng

Mr. Yim Hing Wah

Supervisors:

Ms. Hou Wen Tao
Mr. Guo Jian Yuan
Mr. Wang Xi Lin

All Directors and Supervisors have entered into service contracts
with the Company, for a term of three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the term of office of the Directors shall be three years
commencing from the date of appointment or re-election and
renewable upon re-appointment or re-election. In accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association and the
PRC Company Law, the term of office of supervisors shall also be
three years and renewable upon re-appointment or re-election.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(a)

Interests and short positions of Directors, Chief
Executives and Supervisors of the Company in the share
capital of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2008, the Directors, Chief Executives
and Supervisors of the Company had the following interests
and short positions in the shares, debentures or underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which have been required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or
which have been required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
the Directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

Domestic Shares

Capacity in

Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

EX  EERIETHRAERE

(@)

Name of Director

s

Mr. Liu Xin
I35

which shares
were held

ER &40

() Beneficiary owner
WEZEE A

@Interest in controlled company

Number of
domestic shares

REREAE

138,636,000

138,864,000

RRFES  TBRITRABRESRAE
RNEREBBEE 2 RA T 2 m R K

B

RZZBZNF+ZA=+—H  &~RQA
EFX IBETBRABRESENARF
SRR AE (F & BES RS D
(&7 R EIE 5G] ) EXVER) Z B
BZ SRR D 55 E TR s SR
2 HEREBEEFFHAEKRIIEXVE
FT7R8DEAME AR LR F(E
TRIRIERE 7 LB GO B B R 2
HEFHERRE 2RAIRR) » 3L
R ARIERE 75 S I 1501 2 352 5T
FE 2 B MASRIREAIZER EHARA
F548EH5.67IRAMEFHEITESFR
P2 REAMENNR T S B X 2 ek
Kok

R FRE

AER
Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of

the Company’s  the Company’s

issued total issued
domestic shares shares
HARAT HEARE
BRITHAER BITROEH
BHRED BHRED
42.01% 22.97%
42.08% 23.01%

(Note 1)

(P&E1)
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Domestic Shares (Continued)

Capacity in
which shares

Number of

Name of Director were held domestic shares
EENE B S5 RERER
®Interest in controlled company 10,261,000
ORI N A
Mr. Liu Jun Interest in controlled company 138,864,000
2%k REER AR
Notes: PR -
(1) Mr. Liu Xin holds 60.00% interest in ;& 3I[ T )R i B #1342 F)(“Shenzhen ™

Langqu”) which holds approximately 42.08% interest in the issued domestic

shares of the Company. The corporate interest of Mr. Liu Xin in the Company

duplicates with that held by Mr. Liu Jun in the Company. By virtue of Mr. Liu

Xin’s holding more than one-third interest in Shenzhen Langqu, Mr. Liu Xin is

deemed, under Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in approximately 42.08%

interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company apart from his personal

interest of 42.01% interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company.

° Launch Tech Company Limited &I T TAEEHE AR B BR A 7]

EEX EERFETHRAEBRE
v (&)

R 1= (&)
AER (&)
Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of
the Company’s  the Company’s

issued total issued
domestic shares shares
o N EERARE
ERITRER BITRODEH
RN BMAED T
3.11% 1.70%
(Note 2)
GEY
42.08% 238.01%
(Note 3)
(P 3)

ZIF AR ARITOR B R AR AR (DR
JRE]) 2 60.00% 4% - MRYCRIAIEEARF]
BEITRNERA 42.08% Exs o RIFTEEREQR
2 RANERS BN S RN R R TS 2 RS EAE
HARZET A B ERYIRI =2 — U HiERs - BB
BES RIS GAIEXVE - B EAERBEEAR
RIBBEITARERF 42.01% Z B AN - TR
VEER AN ARIE BITRENREL) 42.08% 12 ©



DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Domestic Shares (Continued)

©) Mr. Liu Xin holds 40.00% interest in #3115 B 1535 & A [R 2 &) (“Shenzhen
De Shi Yu”) which holds 3.11% interest in the issued domestic shares of the
Company. By virtue of Mr. Liu Xin’s holding more than one-third interest in
Shenzhen De Shi Yu, Mr. Liu Xin is deemed, under the Part XV of the SFO, to
be interested in 3.11% interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company
apart from his personal interest of 42.01% interest in the issued domestic

shares of the Company.

) Mr. Liu Jun holds 40.00% interest in Shenzhen Langqu which holds
approximately 42.08% interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company.
The corporate interest of Mr. Liu Jun in the Company duplicates with that held
by Mr. Liu Xin in the Company. By virtue of Mr. Liu Jun’s holding more than
one-third interest in Shenzhen Langqu which holds approximately 42.08%
interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company, Mr. Liu Jun is deemed,
under Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in approximately 42.08% interest in

the issued domestic shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the

Directors, Chief executives or Supervisors of the Company had any

personal, family, corporate or other interests or short positions in

any shares, debentures or underlying shares of the Company or

any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

(b)

Persons who have an interest or short position which is
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO and substantial shareholders

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2008,
the following persons (not being a Director or supervisor of
the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or indirectly
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at

general meetings of any other member of the Group:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares in the

Company

(i) Domestic Shares

EE EERIETHAERE
ZHRER (&)

(b) BEERBIFSZRBEMEMEXVEE2R
BDMATHERDZIAXARBZALTRE
BERR

RZBENF+-_A=1+—H &
ERE - AT AT (GEARRRIESRE
FERRIN) AR BRI 9 2kB BERR (0  FF
BREBESFLHABEBRIEXVEE2 R
3D G BRI NG«
KE - SKEEEERI A D RERE
SRR S BEAE A B A RIRER K
g ERE N 2 EERIR AP S
10% 2k bA_E v s

RAEXTRDREBERD 2HFR
0 AEK

Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of

the Company’s the Company’s

issued total issued
Capacity in domestic shares shares
which shares Number of LR AF] EARATE
Name were held domestic shares BERITRER BITRDER
£ BREH5 AEREE BHEIL BABES
Shenzhen Langqu Interest in controlled company 138,864,000 42.08% 23.01%
(Note 1)
IR AR RN AR (fF3E1)
Note: s -

The legal and beneficial interests in the shares of Shenzhen Langqu are owned
by Mr. Liu Xin as to 60% and by Mr. Liu Jun as to 40% respectively. Mr. Liu Xin
and Mr. Liu Jun are therefore deemed to be interested in all Domestic Shares
registered in the name of Shenzhen Langqu under Part XV of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EE -EERTETHRAERE

EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES FHRER (&)
(Continued)
(b) Persons who have an interest or short position which is (b) HEERBEBZFRABMROIEXVEIE2R
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the 3AHEFHEEZIARZALRE
SFO and substantial shareholders (Continued) ERE ()
(i) H Shares (i) HAZ
Approximate
Approximate percentage
percentage of the
of the Company’s
Company’s total
Interests in issued issued shares
Capacity in H shares H shares LA AF]
which shares  long position HARAT 2R BT
Name were held RHRFE BREITHR BRABEL
=t BR &5 2R BHEs L B
McCarthy Kent C. Interest of corporation 83,288,000 30.44% 19.21%
controlled by substantial (Note)
shareholder (BfF5E)
T ERFETIEHI AR E R
Templeton Asset Investment manager 45,600,000 16.67% 7.55%
Management Ltd. REKRE
International Finance Beneficial owner 38,000,000 13.89% 6.30%
Corporation BEnEEA
Genesis Fund Managers, Investment manager 38,000,000 13.89% 6.30%
LLP REKIE
Jayhawk Paivate Investment manager 27,028,247 9.87% 4.48%
Equity Fund, L. P. WEKIE
(“JPEF”)
Genesis Smaller Investment manager 22,651,000 8.28% 3.75%

Companies SICAV

BRI
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

EEX EERFETHRAEBRE
v (&)

(b) Persons who have an interest or short position which is (b) FEERBEEFRBERGIEXVEE2R

discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO and substantial shareholders (Continued)

(i) H Shares (Continued)

BB AETHRERERIABZALTRE
ERR (&)

(i) HAR (&)

Approximate

Approximate percentage
percentage of the
of the Company’s
Company’s total
Capacity in Interests in issued issued shares
which shares H shares H shares hAAH
were held  long position HARAT IO BT
Name R &4 RHRFE 2RITHR R
£ 2R BHAES T Bk
United Technologies Investment manager 15,349,000 5.61% 2.54%
Corporation Master Trust WEKIE
Carlson Fund Equity Investment manager 12,180,000 4.45% 2.02%
Asian Small Cap WE KR
Note: BR5E -
McCarthy Kent C is interested in 100% of the issued share capital of JPEF. Therefore, McCarthy Kent C i JPEF B8 1TRE AR 100% 2 #Ess -
by virtue of Part XV of the SFO, the H Shares in which JCF and JPEF are shown as AL 1R2EH RSG5 XV ED - JCF K& JPEF B8R
being interested are included in and duplicate with interest in the H Shares held by A 2 ZEHR R T B ER I EEMcCarthy Kent CHiE 2 H
McCarthy Kent C. R iR ETE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2008.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was approximately 27% of the Group’s
total turnover and the Group’s largest customer accounted for

approximately 14% of the Group’s turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers was approximately 42% of the
Group’s total purchases and the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 10% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, or Supervisors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors and supervisors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in any of the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

The Company has complied with the board practices and
procedures as set out in Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing
Rules during this year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee was established on 21 March 2002 with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. The audit committee comprises the
three independent non-executive directors, Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu,
Professor Hu Zi Zheng and Mr. Yim Hing Wah.

Five audit committee meetings were held in 2008 and up to the

date of this announcement to perform the following duties:

- review the 2007 and 2008 annual reports and first to third
quarterly reports of 2008 of the Company; and

- review and supervise the internal control system of the

Group.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific
enquiry to all Directors and the Company is not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by
the Company throughout the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or may
cause significant competition with the business of the Group.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton as independent
auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board
Launch Tech Company Limited
Liu Xin

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
31 March 2009

Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

ESETESRRS

RARERN—EFHEFTETERRSHZ
BSPRER] - ERTBERAIZEIR TR RIS
548 E 567 EFTIRE 2R HIRLE - I&MTE
EEEHERFERE  RAARWTEEE
MEERARFANETIRE 2R HER R
NAFTRN s BRESETESFR D LIRT
8 -

B

ARFEE R SR ERE RS S B OB
A (3% RAIRIR b iR s s
LA AT MR B B R TP R
B -

B % BED

ARBERARBBRBEAREG LIRERFE
RUAEHZEHESAMITAARR 2BL
RZELRD

EEEEMD

R AR RO BERAF

EFER
B3
FE ORI

—EEAF=A=+-A

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ )\ F 41 a



Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZHAHES

0 GrantThornton
HE

To the members of Launch Tech Company Limited
(A joint stock company with limited liability established in the
People’s Republic of China)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Launch
Tech Company Limited &I T TAE BB B R A 7 (the
“Company”) set out on pages 40 to 123, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

e Launch Tech Company Limited &I TAERHZ IR (D B IR A R
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

31 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement
mealER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

2008 2007
“EEN\F —ZTTLF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

i ARBTT ARETT

Revenue L6 5 438,554 412,463
Cost of sales SHE RN (229,196) (183,766)
Gross profit EF 209,358 228,697
Other income H MK A 5 29,184 23,650
Selling expenses HERX (71,869) (74,284)
Administrative expenses THRER (61,346) (44,582)
Research and development expenses iz & (17,212) (16,027)
Other operating expenses HAL &R~ (38,095) (30,087)
Finance costs BFTE R AR (26,973) (23,166)
Share of results of an associate i NI e 18 (7,121) (2,753)
Gain on deemed disposal of interest in RIEHE —fHtE AR

an associate s 2 W e 18 4,244 =
Profit before income tax MRS B AR R 6 20,170 61,448
Income tax expense FriS iz i g (7,339) (101)
Profit for the year IR B E A 10 12,831 61,347
Dividends BRE 11 12,072 30,180

RMB RMB
ARE AR

Earnings per share for profit attributable RATRFERER

to the equity holders of the Company B AEMWN

during the year FRER

- Basic -8R 12 2.1cents?  10.9cents %

° Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R



Consolidated Balance Sheet
mEEERER

As at 31 December 2008 R-ZZNF+_-_A=+—H

2008 2007
—ZE\E  —ETE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

iz ARBTT ARETET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE KR 13 233,467 215,656
Leasehold land and land use rights HELTwETHERE 14 21,927 22,453
Goodwill EES 15 3,658 3,658
Development costs RPN 16 47,008 43,975
Interests in an associate 1) N W - e 18 9,759 7,636
Club membership eMEE 19 1,177 =
316,996 293,378
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 76,650 83,165
Trade receivables JEWE 8RR 21 238,734 251,582
Bills receivables R 22 1,433 2,510
Other receivables, deposits HpEEoE -~ &S
and prepayments INSELRE S 23 164,616 142,414
Amount due from an associate —E Bt A BR R 25 3,159 493
Pledged bank deposits B ZRITER 26 21,000 15,669
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRESEEY 27 97,583 175,203
603,175 671,036
Current liabilities wREAE
Trade payables FERNE S RN 28 60,763 64,387
Bills payables eI 21,000 18,300
Other payables and accrued charges HAbfETRIA R EET & A 12,662 19,274
Income tax payables FEfPTISTRIE 12 -
Current portion of borrowings BEZREE S 29 278,865 233,323
373,302 335,284
Net current assets REBEERE 229,873 335,752
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEME 546,869 629,130
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Borrowings BE 29 40,763 105,572
Net assets BEEFE 506,106 523,558
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EQUITY =

Equity attributable to the Company’s BATERBFEA
equity holders FEfh i

Share capital (&N

Reserves ]

Proposed final dividend ERARERE

Total equity e

Mr. Liu Xin Mr. Liu Jun

B reE 23 kL

Director Director

EZE EE

° Launch Tech Company Limited #3IM TTAEEHE AR DB BR A A

Notes

B aE

31
32(a)
11

2008 2007
It
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE  ARMTE
60,360 60,360
433,674 433,018
12,072 30,180
506,106 523,558




ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land and land use rights
Development costs

Investments in subsidiaries
Interests in an associate

Club membership

Current assets
Inventories

Trade receivables
Bills receivables

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amount due from an associate
Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Bills payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Current portion of borrowings

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Net assets

EQUITY

Share capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

Mr. Liu Xin
BFTEE

Director

EF

Balance Sheet
BEEAEXR

As at 31 December 2008 R-ZZNF+_-_A=+—H

BERARE

FRBEE

W% -~ BE K&
FHE £ 30 N+ 3 6 P
FEAAR
KB AR ZIE
Nl VNI 5

SERE

REBEE

&

& I 58 5 Bk
e

HA e YRR
B RIANFIR
F /8 A BIR K

— AR AR R K
EHEMZRITER
Re kR eEHEY

RBRE

AN LN
ANE S

HoAl R SRR e e T B
RSB R BFRIE
fEEZREED

REBEEFE
REERRBAE

FRBEE
f&E

AERE

R
P
i)
EERARHE

A

Mr. Liu Jun
239554

Director

EF

Notes

F=E

13
14
16
17
18
19

20
21
22

23
24
25
26
27

28

24
29

29

31
32(0)
11

2008 2007
—TENF —TTLF
RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTT
176,001 164,835
9,821 10,077
14,372 15,889
96,853 96,853
16,350 11,350
1,177 -
314,574 299,004
16,759 58,022
225,007 192,399
1,000 1,000
182,025 223,778
54,394 48,633
3,137 493
21,000 15,669
85,272 167,611
588,594 707,605
6,859 21,579
21,000 18,300
8,857 12,478
151,898 181,276
278,152 232,926
466,766 466,559
121,828 241,046
436,402 540,050
40,000 105,000
396,402 435,050
60,360 60,360
323,970 344,510
12,072 30,180
396,402 435,050
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest expenses
Interest income
Amortisation of development costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Annual charges on leasehold land and land
use rights
Loss on disposals of leasehold land and land
use rights
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, plant
and equipment
Provision for impairment on trade receivables
Provision for impairment on other receivables
Provision for slow-moving inventories
Gain on deemed disposal of interest in
an associate

Share of results of an associate

Operating profit before working capital changes

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in bills receivables

Increase in amount due from an associate

Increase in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Decrease in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables and
accrued charges

Increase in bills payables

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

a Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

Notes
Bt
REEBREEIRBRS
FR PRS0 A& A 6
KA
MEX 8
FEMA
B AR 2 B 55 16
Y% - BB RERE 2 TES
TAE Tt At
EREFE 14
HERE i i
2 A% 2 EstE
HEME - BER
w2 BB (W)

FEWE ZERFURERE 21
Hit IR R ER R 23

Vark =LA R L 50
RIEHE — M QA
ez Was 18

EIE—FBEAREE 18

BEAS B ZEEEF
B,/ ()

MU B0 ()
SRR (450)

BHE DR

HibEUERIE « e RIEN
FRIBIEAN
FEFTE 5 BR TR
Hfth FE AT RIB K

FEET & A (O, /18in
e BRI AN
KEEBELERS
BAFLE

BEAEH
A ESELER SR

2008 2007
—FT)N\F —ETTEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETITT ARETT
20,170 61,448
24,257 21,898
(1,953) (1,089)
10,337 9,254
22,941 24,898
526 591

- 81

620 (2,732)
10,363 10,932
2,497 -

- 495

(4,244) -
7,121 2,753
92,635 128,529
6,515 (1,441)
2,485 (28,730)
1,077 (2,510)
(2,666) (450)
(25,876) (36,550)
(3,624) (3,732)
(6,612) 2,788
2,700 11,976
66,634 69,880
(24,257) (21,898)
(7,327) (472)
35,050 47,510




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEHESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

2008 2007
—ZETENF —ETTEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARETT AR®ETT
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHEEZREBES
Further investment in an associate R—EE a2 E—F
RE (5,000) (10,000)
Additions of property, plant and equipment FIEYE - BB MR
Itz g% (42,626) (34,780)
Expenditure on development activities FEEBIFAX (13,370) (11,982)
Repayment from a related company B —MREER R 2 FIA = 1,271
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEME  BENEE
and equipment Frf§ 3k 1,254 12,466
Proceeds from disposals of leasehold land and ~ HEMEE i K& it
land use rights FE TSR - 669
Interest received B U F B 1,953 1,089
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHFTRAR ST 33 (57,789) (41,267)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBELEZRBES
Issue of H shares BEITH IR - 70,796
Share issue expenses BRI 2 2 1 = (8,514)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits DIEIRI TR
(gm),/md (5,331) 10,155
Drawdown of bank loans REERITE R 349,368 395,630
Repayment of bank loans ERIBITERK (368,635) (325,074)
Dividends paid BRE (80,180) (19,530)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEEE (FTH) /B4
financing activities 2R & FRE (54,778) 123,463
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERBSEEYORD),/
cash equivalents EINFEEE (77,517) 129,706
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HBZBEE&R
RE%EY 175,203 45,197
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, INEZEEFFE 2 RE
on cash held -2 (103) 300
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, R+=-A=+—HBZBHEK
comprising cash at banks and in hand REEEY  sTERTER
kRS 97,583 175,203
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

MEEREBRE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADAREREAELES
HE Biay
e N RERE
B&  RGEE*  Statutory* Public:  BERE*  REEN*  Proposed  BREE
Share Share* surplus welfare  Translation*  Retained* final Total
capital  premium reserve fund reserve profits dividend equity
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVMBOO0  RBMOOD  RMBOOO  RWMBOOD  RMBIOOO
ARETT  AREfn  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETT  ARETR
(Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 32)
) (:27) B (7)) (H32)
At 1 January 2007 NZEEtE-A-A 55,800 226,488 15,601 15,601 (1,316) 87,466 19,530 419,159
Issue of H shares EHk 4560 66,236 - - - - - 70,79
Share issue expenses UGG - (8514) - - - - - (8514)
Appropriations i = - 3719 3779 - (7,558) - -
2006 fnal dhidend paid B2 EREkS - - - - - - (19,5%0) (19,5%0)
Curtency tranglation differences - SR HEZE
profit and totalincome - BRRMNER
recognised directly In equity LRERARA - - - - 300 - = 300
Proft for the year ERfE - - - - - 61,347 - 61,347
Proft and total income ERBRERABKA
recognised for the year - - - - 300 61,347 - 61,647
2007 proposed fraldvidend ~~ ~ETLFRE 2 KHRE - - - - - (30,180) 30,180 =
At 31 December 2007 and RZEEHETZA=T-AR
1 January 2008 ZEE0\5-A-8 60,360 284,10 19,380 19,380 (1,016) 111,064 30,180 523,658
2007 fnal dvidend paid BRZEStERERE - - - - - - (30,180) (30,180)
Curency franslaton differences - EEHEZE
loss and total expense -ERRBRNER
recognised diectly in equly LERRESH - - - - (103) - - (108)
Proft for the year ERHE - - - - - 12831 - 12831
Proft and total income ERBERBHA
recognised for the year - - - - (103) 12,831 - 12728
2008proposed fraldividend ~~ —EFN\ERZZKERE - - - - - (12,072) 12072 -
At 31 December 2008 RZBBNETZA=1-A 60,360 284,210 19,380 19380 (1,119) 111823 12072 506,106
& These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB433,674,000 (2007: WERERFPEERNGEEEABRANZHE

RMB4383,018,000) in the consolidated balance sheet.

Total income and expense attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 amounts to
RMB12,728,000 (2007: RMB61,647,000).

° Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

AR ¥433,674,000( Z T T LF: ARK

433,018,000 7T) °
RARAERFEARGEE-_ZEZT/)\F
TZA=+—BFEZBBARIHAA
R¥12728000c( —ZEZT+F: AR
61,647,000 7C) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE R AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Launch Tech Company Limited (the “Company”) was
established in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) as a joint stock limited company and its overseas
listed foreign invested shares (“H Shares”) are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since October 2002. The address of the Company’s
registered office is 2-8 Floors, Xin Yan Building, Bagua
Number Four Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC and
its principal place of business is Launch Industrial Park, North
of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
the PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are the provision of products and services
serving the automotive aftermarket and the automobile

industry in the PRC and certain overseas countries.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards, amendments and interpretations
(the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial statements
for the annual period beginning on 1 January 2008:

HK (IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and
Treasury Share Transactions
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Reclassification of

Financial Assets

The new HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior periods have
been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment is required.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED

HKFRSs (Continued)

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the

following new and amended HKFRSs have been published

but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by

the Group.

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32, HKAS 39 &
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

Presentation of Financial
Statements!
Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate
financial Statements?

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation'

Eligible Hedged Items?

Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement — Embedded
Derivatives®

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or an Associate'

First-Time Adoption of HKFRS?

Share-based Payment - Vesting

Conditions and Cancellations’

Business Combinations?

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments'

Operating Segments'

° Launch Tech Company Limited Z&IIT TTAEEHE IS B R A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED

HKFRSs (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives®

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction

of Real Estate!
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation*
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to
Owners?®
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from
Customers?

Various Annual Improvements to HKFRS
2008’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

¢ Effective for transfer of assets from customers received on or after 1
July 2009

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2009

7 Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2009 unless otherwise stated in the specific HKFRS

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Among these new standards and interpretations, HKAS 1
(Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements is expected
to materially change the presentation of the Group’s financial
statements. The amendments affect the presentation of
owner changes in equity and introduce a statement of
comprehensive income. The Group will have the option of
presenting items of income and expenses and components
of other comprehensive income either in a single statement
of comprehensive income with subtotals, or in two separate
statements (a separate income statement followed by a
statement of comprehensive income).

The amendment does not affect the financial position or

results of the Group but will give rise to additional disclosures.

In addition, HKFRS 8 Operating Segments may result in new
or amended disclosures. The directors are in the process
of identifying reportable operating segments as defined in
HKFRS 8.

The directors are currently assessing the impact of other
new and amended HKFRSs upon initial application. So far,
the directors have preliminarily concluded that the initial
application of these HKFRSs is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results and financial position.

e Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 40 to 123 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 31 March 2009.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement
of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see 3.3 below) made up to 31 December

each year.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the
power to control the financial and operating policies
SO as to obtain benefits from their activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
excluded from consolidation from the date that control

ceases.

Business combinations (other than combining entities
under common control) are accounted for by applying
the purchase method. This involves the revaluation
at fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities,
including contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the
acquisition date, regardless of whether or not they were
recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiary
prior to acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated balance sheet at their fair value, which are
also used as the bases for subsequent measurement in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE R AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss. The results of
the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
balance sheet date.

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of voting rights but which are neither subsidiaries
nor investment in a joint venture. In consolidated
financial statements, investments in associates are
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted
for using the equity method. Under the equity method,
the Group’s interests in the associate is carried at
cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets less
any identified impairment loss, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for the
year, including any impairment loss on goodwill relating

to the investment in associate recognised for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interests in the associate, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose,
the Group’s interests in the associate is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate.

3.3

3.4
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. FEETHREE(H)

3.4 Associates (Continued) 3.4 HENT (4E)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment.

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment as
part of the investment. After the application of equity
method, the Group determines whether it is necessary
to recognise an additional impairment loss on the
Group’s investment in its associates. At each balance
sheet date, the Group determines whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in associate is
impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as being the
difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying amount.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where the associate adopts accounting policies other
than those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where
necessary, to conform the associate’s accounting
policies to those of the Group when the associate’s
financial statements are adopted by the Group in
applying the equity method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE R AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.4

3.5

Associates (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At balance sheet date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the balance sheet date retranslation of monetary
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

3.4

3.5
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

3.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into RMB
at the closing rate at the balance sheet date. Income
and expenses have been converted into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been
dealt with separately in the translation reserve in equity.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 have been treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated into RMB at the
closing rate. Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of
foreign operations before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods,
net of rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the customer. This is usually taken as the time
when goods are delivered and the customer has

accepted the goods.

(i)  Revenue from the sale of software systems is
recognised when the software system has been
delivered and installed and the customer has
examined and accepted the software system.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE R AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.6

3.7

3.8

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i)  Revenue from technical services is recognised

when the services are rendered.

(iv)  Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(v} Non-refundable government grants are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

(v Rental income under operating leases is recognised
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. The cost of the
business combination is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 3.12).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

3.9

Goodwill (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in the income

statement.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the

determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development costs

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The development costs capitalised,
which include cost of materials and direct labour, are
amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the products or processes up to eight
years from the date of commencement of commercial

operation.

Intangible asset such as club membership with
indefinite useful life is carried at cost less any

subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TESTBERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and 3.9 JEIEEE (BMERIN RIFZER
research and development costs (Continued) (#&)
Research and development costs HEER
Costs associated with research activities are expensed iR ES R BRERE A
in the income statement as they occur. Costs that RS RP S -  BEERE
are directly attributable to the development projects FEFIE RIS ERAERREF
whereby research findings or other knowledge are ZETEISkERET 2 TR A R H At
applied to a plan or design for the production of new NBFIEEZAEERERASE
or substantially improved products and processes are WEE  EHEUTHERRES
recognised as intangible assets, provided that they FRAN

meet the following recognition requirements:

)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the () FARTEHAR LA A ER G

prospective product for internal use or sale; s iHE 2 & m 2 B ilga]
1T

(i) thereis intention to complete the intangible asset (i) FEREREERFERBKD
and use or sell it; EEPEECEH

(i)  the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible iy AEEFEHAXHEELE
asset is demonstrated; EZRENBRIFER

(v) the intangible asset will generate probable vy EFEESBRBAIER
economic benefits through internal use or sale; Sl EH & R EE LR P B B T

(V)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources v BEREEM MBEERE
are available for completion; and M EIRARTER 5 &

(v  the expenditure attributable to the intangible Vi EFEERGZHAZER
asset can be reliably measured. FEHEE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.9

3.10

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development costs (Continued)
Other development costs are not capitalised are

recognised as an expense in the period as incurred.

Club membership and capitalised development costs
assets are tested for impairment as described below in
note 3.12.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold interest in the land at the inception of
the lease, and other items of plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, taking into account their estimated residual
value and using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Buildings 4%-5%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Mould and equipment 10%-20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ estimated residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

e Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

3. FEETHREE(H)

3.9

3.10

B/LEAE (BERN RIZER
()
AEFREA 2 EMHABEERNE
ERERIARA ST T LARERR ©

T XHIFES 2P - EFTEAE
RBEFRERNZAEEREEFER
BRI -

%~ BERRE
EREET L2 RKEERE
F o HAHER R EE R A R
MEL A FESHFE &
R s MR # TR B TR AN R R
AHTE MREBREAK -

WE - BERREEEBEMG
RISREER - R IIIFRREL
FHAME A A B SOE M B 1R
RANEFTEIFE -

B¥F 4%-5%
HEWHFEE 20%
KA R 10%-20%
E 20%

REEEERUZETEE 2 AT
FEERAERFERETERZR
FE (LER) ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10

3.11

3.12

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights represent up-front
payments to acquire the land use rights/leasehold land.
They are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the lease
term except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries,
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and
land use rights, club membership, development
costs, interests in an associate, and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are subject to impairment

testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets which are not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. All other individual
assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. FEETHREE(H)

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) 3.12 EERME (&)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of time value of money and the risk specific to the
assets.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill
in particular is allocated to those cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the
other assets in the cash generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost to sell or value in use, if
determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE R AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12

3.13

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognized in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.13 Leases (Continued)

U

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the
lease term except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in the income
statements as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rental
are charged to the income statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature
of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in the income statement as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in

the accounting period in which they are earned.

G Launch Tech Company Limited Z&IIT TTAEEHE IS B R A A

—EEN\FF+_A=+—HILEFE

3. TEETHREE (&)

3.13 #HE (&)

U)

(i)

ERAEAZREHER
53
MAEEAEAEEHRE
EREEZERE AR
MEZXHRHEERREZ
BN Wt R R S F
X BRIEEAR TR R B 4F
W23 KEHEEERNK
@ MERZEERSEY
FElRmkTHER/EEF
NREEZERE 7D ° K
AHESHEHEELZGFH
B YRR PR o

EREBEARERSE
HHEEE
BELLEELEAZEE
TIRBEEZEE TG
ERZ2N - R E kT
REMERMEEZYE
BEEKADGFAREEE
ZAREE - WREEBA
HHEWARRZ EERE
RRFX °

HE

KEKEHEZREES
WARBERERERR
MR REER - BRIFE M
AR E M ENREHE
EEEMKE  IERZ
HEBSHERSERTE
RAABEFNRBE A
PXER D o AR & HE
EZ gt R AER AW
A °



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. TEETHREE (&)

3.14 Financial assets 3.14 MEE

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries and an associate

are set out below.

The Group’s financial assets include trade, bills and
other receivables, amount due from an associate,
pledged bank deposits, and cash and cash

equivalents.

Trade, bills and other receivables, and amount due
from an associate are categorised as loans and
receivables.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this

designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

—EEN\FF+_A=+—HILEFE

3.14 Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments expire
or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred. At each
balance sheet date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other
than at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of

impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

e Launch Tech Company Limited Z&IIT TTAEEHE IS B R A A

3. TEETHREE (&)

3.14 SREE (8)

W EIREMEERNRERE L
MR EE - AR
BARE D RN ERE KB
AEUHERTREE - NE&ER
B 2ndemEENTEES
TE/DMEZ%%E IR - MEFE
ZEEBER  BETRELR
Tfﬁrzﬂﬁ?zﬂ* RS, ©

ERREWRRE

ER R ERFIEIIER SR T 5
{8 M A & B F ok A & TE KA
ZHTEMECRMEE - ERK
FEWRIEBE R IR E R R A &
LSRN - R E R
BR o BESHRK AR TR AT AT (AT YL i
RS RBERETE  TEEBR
ERMERZGEA—EBH 2B
=

TREERE
REFEEENEREE (B
FERBRREBDmRERIN AETE
ERFEEARE . TBER

ERlemEE s RERESER
FESIBUARE B T 7| —T8sk %18
BB 2 AR EUE ¢



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TESTBERME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 Financial assets (Continued) 3.14 £@MEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SMEERME(E)

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor; — BEBARBAERTERE ;

—  a breach of contract, such as a default or - EREXN i REE
delinquency in interest or principal payments; BEEMNEHAD

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter - EBATURSBEEILE
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; HBisEs

- significant changes in the technological, market, - B W5 KBERERE
economic or legal environment that have an RBEZERNEHELEA
adverse effect on the debtor; and FEEXE K

- asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value - HRAEZTAZEREZ
of an investment in an equity instrument below its AFERBRERSKHAT
cost. BREERAARE ©

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets FAX—HEMEEZLHEEE

include observable data indicating that there is a BREERZBESHEE 2R

measurable decrease in the estimated future cash RIB & e IR A a2 EE 2 7]

flows from the group of financial assets. Such BRYE 2S5 ERSEESE

observable data includes but not limited to adverse BRRRAERRER A Z AR

changes in the payment status of debtors in the Mo AR BB RIRNE EERIER

group and, national or local economic conditions that B2 BRSNS &S E AR IR

correlate with defaults on the assets in the Group. o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. FEETHREE(H)

3.14 Financial assets (Continued) 314 £REE ()

[f any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in income
statement for the period in which the impairment

OCCurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in income statement for the period in which

the reversal occurs.

a Launch Tech Company Limited &I TAERHZ AR B IR A R

A FEEAZFER - BB ERE
BRATHAGERER -

B EWHKE

i A T BB BRAER LRI
HEEAREEE HEERHR
BRAFRKESRE (TR
HWAELEZRKEEER) 2R
BZEZ8  UZEBEEZRERF
R(ANZFIERZEREMNE)F
& BHESENREELSR
Wan sk AIER ©

RER 2 HE - W EE R
BEEE FEEEBERAREE
ZEER AEERRZRE
RGBSR - ERD RS
TRVEE IR S BB OB E R
(=] B 5 fi A i SRR (L B 2 8 S A
Ao B SRENEEEMRE K
TR AR ©



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. TEETHREE (&)

3.15 Accounting for income taxes 3.15 FIfSRzast A%

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are
unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in the income statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.15

3.16

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credit directly to
equity.

Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, supplies and
purchased goods. Cost is determined using weighted
average method and in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, include all expenses directly
attributable to the manufacturing process as well as
appropriate portions of related production overheads,
based on normal operating capacity. Financing costs
are not taken into consideration. At the balance sheet
date, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and applicable selling

expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.17

3.18

3.19

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, less bank overdraft which is
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Retirement benefit costs
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
a defined contribution plan.

The employees of the Company and its subsidiaries
which operate in PRC are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government.

The Company and its subsidiaries are required to
contribute 8.0% to 22.5% of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

—EEN\FF+_A=+—HILEFE

3.20 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank
borrowings, trade, bills and other payables and

accrued charges.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in finance costs in the income

statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is

recognised in the income statement.

(i) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TESTBERME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.20 Financial liabilities (Continued) 3.20 eREME (&)
(i)  Trade, bills and other payables and accrued iy ENESEZR EMNEE
charges K EL A < 5RIE DA K FE Ft
A
These payables are recognised initially at their fair ZE RN FIBYH TR B
value and subsequently measured at amortised AT EER HEEHRE
cost, using the effective interest method. PR FOEIRBE S ARGT 2 o
3.21 Related parties 3.21 BEEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: IRTFATHE AN ERBEEA
9F ¢
()  directly, or indirectly through one or more () BRA—XZEPNEE
intermediaries, the party: %07 B A%
- controls, is controlled by, or is under - EHAEEHAR
common control with, the Group or the Al - SKAANEBE A
Company; NEES] - SEARE
B AR R ZE A
22
—  has an interest in the Company that gives it — RAEEEZ MZ
significant influence over the Group or the R AE ﬁﬁﬂ$’§
Company; or B RRITEERNT
775 3k
—  has joint control over the Group or the — HAEEHIARAE
Company; B HEREES
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.21 Related parties (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

the party is an associate of the Group or the
Company;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity of the Group

or the Company;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company;

the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (iv) or (v); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group or the
Company, or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group or the Company.

3.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a

present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result

of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow

of economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where

the time value of money is material, provisions are

stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date

and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.22

3.23

Provisions (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segment be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment as the secondary reporting
format.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue
is based on the countries in which the customers are
located and total assets and capital expenditure are
based on where the assets are located.
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3. TEETHREE (&)

3.22

3.23
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4,
AND JUDGEMENTS

EEETHEOET R A

4.1

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experiences and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 3.12. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units

have been determined based on value-in-use

fEt KA AR B AR BB E LR R E
AR (BREAEBEATHERGRE
ZEIARREN ZTEH) I TRHA o

4.1

ERETHERT RERR

REBE LR RAE B AET R RR
EEMMEN AT AT AR
RIEAERER - L THRALARA
RAEEARRENEERAEY
FHEXRTEMBRFEHREX
TR Z fhET R

A EETRE

AEBEFFHILIRHEES.12
Pr#sl e @t BR AR E
ETRERNE - MBSE
EEAAA RS A
RREMREEFE - %5

calculations. These calculations require the use STE B REET o
of estimates.
(i)  Net realisable value of inventories iy TFEZAIEIRFE

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result
of competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles. Management will reassess the
estimations at the balance sheet date.

e Launch Tech Company Limited &I TAERHZ AR B IR A R

FEZAEBRFETINA
FEBBRET2GTEE
A BT T2 AR AN I 3 6 B
X REMATARAED
MARHERBEMRZBE
ReAEELET YAR
BFHFRERIE ZTTE
BRMERZTEMEE
hE - BEEE/NEEAR
BEHFHE B RfEET -
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B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

)

Estimated impairment of receivables and other
receivables

The policy for the impairment of receivables
and other receivables of the Group is based on
analysis of ageing and, where appropriate, other
relevant aspects of accounts. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. If the
financial conditions of debtors of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional provision for

impairment may be required.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies

Research and development activities

Careful judgement by the Company’s directors is
applied when deciding whether the recognition
requirements for development costs have been
met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and
may be subject to future technical problems at
the time of recognition. Judgements are based
on the best information available at each balance
sheet date. In addition, all internal activities
related to the research and developments of
new products are continuously monitored by the

Group’s management.

4. EEETHET RHE (&)

41 EEEEETRER (&)

(i)

IR WA R TR e L At 78 WA R IR
ZhRHRE

7R 5 B 8 R WK R ) Ho At
FE W R IR 2 R TH IR BBk
ok (WER) EtE
B4 77 E M SRIA T BIET » &
Bt R TR BRBRN R
FIEIREERR - FEIEL A
EXE  BRSERARE
B {5 BRI BB 1 1 R AL
8% WABERF R EEGT
ARRSREHNIRE © fin
AEBEEADNT BRI
B - HIssENREES - Al
F] RE T ERRIMNRLE B

42 FERAREESTBER2EZHE

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ )\ FE 1R a

IR

ARREFNREFARE
AREENAERRERE
FAF 4 HVE o B METE
an 7 3% 2 1B R R R BE
E RRERZFARER
7 R SR 1T - Bt
BUE- HEREBEGEHE
AREAIERHZRESR
FHEL - stsh - BB %
#EE f < FT A A BB E B 15
BX N EEEEEMER -



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4,
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies (Continued)

(i)  PRC income tax and value added tax

Despite in the opinion of the Company’s directors

the Group had complied with all relevant tax

law and regulations as applicable including

PRC income tax and value added tax law and

regulations, judgement was made in respect of

such assessment. Penalties and/or additional

provision may arise in case of non-compliance of

which the amount cannot be estimated reliably

for the purpose of these financial statements.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue

Other income

Interest income on financial assets stated
at amortised cost

— Bank interest income

— Other interest income

VAT refunds *

Non-refundable government subsidies

Rental income

Gain on disposals of land and buildings

Others

a Launch Tech Company Limited &I TAERHZ AR B IR A R

Wy z8

HAit A
BN AR

Z B BEENBUA
—RITHBHA

—H i BUA
IBEFURM
EEBUTER

HE WA

HE i R8T 2 Was
HAit

EEETHAT R A E (&)

4.2 FERAREEESTBER2EZHE

()

(i) ARSI ER
BEARABESRABLAE
EEETHRAEER2AH
POERZER - BIERREA
S8 RIS ERERIER
eI R - o
KReEBTZEEH - BlA
BEEAE S K S EE MR
# BAMBREME -
ZE SRR SMERT o

i~ R AR 5 EEH
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TE
438,564 412,463
1,153 1,089
800 -
16,634 16,850
2,010 1,200
6,677 2,074

= 1,098

1,910 1,339
29,184 23,650
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B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net amount received and receivable for goods and software
systems sold and services rendered arising from the principal
activities of the Group, net of value-added tax (“VAT”) and/or
business tax.

VAT refunds relating to the sales of certain products during the period
from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008 (2007: from 1 December
2006 to 31 December 2007) was approved and refunded by the PRC

tax bureau in the current year.

The Group’s operation is regarded as a single business
segment, being an enterprise providing products and
services serving the automotive aftermarket and the
automobile industry in the PRC and certain overseas
countries. As such, no business segment analysis is
provided.

The Group’s operations are located in four main geographical
areas. The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue by location of customers, irrespective of the origin of
the goods and services.

s~ AR 2 EEHR

(&)

Yoak (TR SR8 2 & K80 LRI A
SEXZEBKZCHEERMEERER
DA B ER A AR 75 AT B B R MR -2 5RIR
FEREEER(EBER]D K REE
i o

WEBRBIRR-_TZ/\F—A—HBZ
T \FF+_A=+—HASM(CTT L
F:ZTEAFT_A—HE-ZTZTLHF
TZA=T—B)ZETERBEE - RAF
SRR BTG B HE I FOR A -

AEE T BRI A — BT 2
5 B—RATERETENERZ
RE TR TR ER R
(% - Al BEREETEBHED
7 o

REE 2 FEEAIM PO EE 2402 G 5 -
TRARKEREFAEM (T EE
an X IRTS HRI) B0 2 s AT

2008 2007
—TENF _—TTLF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Segment revenue by geographical markets: &5 & 585 < 5 2RI ES

PRC other than Hong Kong FE(NEEES)
Europe EM
America E
Others HAth

No geographical analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets and capital expenditure is provided as less than
10% of the segment assets and capital expenditure are
attributable to the markets outside the PRC.

187,784 172,085
102,877 95,519
85,353 60,278
62,540 84,581
438,554 412,463

BERRERENINTSEZ D REERE
AMERSR10% » Eib B R A
DREEREAMRS 2 RESE M
BT o

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ )\ FE 1R °



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

during the years 2007 and 2008 equal to the cost of sales
shown in the consolidated income statement.

° Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

ZHHERA

6. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 6. BRPTEBIADRF
2008 2007
—ZETNF —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREF T
Profit before income tax has been arrived BRETS R R A T AR,

at after charging/(crediting): (FFA) FEIBIERED
Staff costs BT

Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration EEREEHS

(note 7) (BME7) 1,266 1,506
Other staff costs H At B TRA 64,669 64,894
Retirement benefits RURGEF) 8,210 7,366

74,145 73,766
Less: Staff costs capitalised as B ERREKAEE
development costs (note 16) BEARZ BT (H7E16) (13,370) (11,982)
60,775 61,784
Research expenditure for current year AEEHREARAT 6,875 6,773
Add: Amortisation of development costs o REAA#HE (FiEE16)

(note 16) 10,337 9,254
Research and development expenses MEER 17,212 16,027
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1%  BE KRG E 22,941 24,898
Operating lease charges on land and T REFEEHEEEH

buildings 5,381 5,269
Annual charge on leasehold land and ME T & i fE A

land use rights REE 526 591
Loss on disposals of leasehold land and HEBS TR

land use rights T AR - 81
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEWE  BEKEEZ

plant and equipment BB (M) 620 2,732)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREEN & 1,267 1,303
Net exchange loss i 5 ES18F 5 22,406 17,279
Provision for impairment on trade receivables  JEMWE 5 B Z R (E B 10,363 10,932
Provision for impairment on other receivables £ 4th & U5 R IE R (B B 2,497 -
Provision for slow-moving inventories T E R E - 495
The Group’s cost of inventories recognised as expenses $7NIE/\ ZE+FR-_TTNFRE

RRAXZFERAERERS WK A
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 7. EEREEMNE
REMUNERATION
Salaries,
allowances

and other Retirement

benefits benefits
Fees ¥#H& - 2R costs Total
e REMERN BASERE st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARETET AREBTT

2008 —EENF

Executive directors HiTEE

Mr. Liu Xin 2L - 403 4 407
Mr. Liu Jun 215 5%4% - 383 4 387
Professor Wang Xue Zhi T BRI - - - -
Non-executive director FHTEE

Ms. Liu Yong BBt 15 = = 15

Independent non-executive directors &7 FE#7T7E F

Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu RNESE 15 = = 15
Professor Hu Zi Zheng BT IR 15 = = 15
Mr. Yim Hing Wah BREERAE 5 - - 5
Supervisors 2%
Ms. Hou Wen Tao E3°9; 2o4um 10 = = 10
Mr. Guo Jian Yuan SR T E 10 = - 10
Mr. Wang Xi Lin FAIAE 10 390 2 402
80 1,176 10 1,266
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

2007 —EBLHF
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Liu Xin Bl et
Mr. Liu Jun g babies
Professor Wang Xue Zhi T BRI
Non-executive director HBITEE
Ms. Liu Yong E Lt

Independent non-executive directors ¥ FE#7TE F

Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu SRANESEAE
Professor Hu Zi Zheng HEFIE 2R
Mr. Yim Hing Wah BEERE
Supervisors 2%

Ms. Hou Wen Tao E3°¢- 2w
Mr. Guo Jian Yuan ZREEIRIE A
Mr. Wang Xi Lin FRMELE

e Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

7. EERESHME (&)

Salaries,
allowances
and other  Retirement
benefits benefits
Fees & 284 costs Total
we REMEN REKSHKA @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT AREBTT ARETT
- 386 390
- 78 377
- 273 - 273
15 - - 15
15 - - 15
15 - - 15
5 - - 5
10 - - 10
10 - - 10
10 384 2 396
80 1,416 10 1,506
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the five highest
paid individuals of the Group included two directors and
one supervisor (2007: two directors and one supervisor),
details of which are included above. The emoluments of the
remaining two highest paid individuals (2007: two individuals)
are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Retirement benefits cost IRRE A

The emoluments of each of the two individuals (2007: two
individuals) fall within the band of nil to HKD1,000,000.
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors,
supervisors or highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2007: Nil). None of the directors waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the year (2007: Nil).

e RRARHAMRER

EEREEME (A
BE-—TT/\F+-A=+—HIF

B AEBRUKRSHALTEEML
EENNER(CZEZLF  mUE
ER—UEE) AEEMESR EXH
B o ESMA(Z22LF - MRS
FALHHFMIT

2008 2007
—FENFE —BBLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETET ARBTT

827 641
2 3
829 644

MA(ZTZLF: M) ALTRBEZ
Bl S FZ = 1,000,000 7T © A -
AEBVERABRES  EFAESH
AEAHEAIHB - (ESE AN
AR B 2 RE SRR HE

—TTLF E) EENFAMER
RZRREREEAMHFH (T LF
&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. B A
2008 2007
—TTN\F —2EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT AREBFT
Interest charges on bank loans stated at REHR AR RIRTTE R
amortised cost: ZHEEZH
— wholly repayable within five years —ERAFRNEBEER 24,257 21,898
Bank charges RITEH 2,716 1,268
26,973 23,166
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FIEBixH

PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) has been provided based
on the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the provinces in which
the Group operates. The Company’s overseas subsidiary is
subject to income tax at the rate of 42%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Company has been designated as a new and high
technology enterprise. The Company is subject to income tax
at the rate of 18% (2007: 15%). The Company was exempted
from EIT for the financial years in 2000 and 2001 and was
eligible for and entitled to 50% tax relief for the financial years
from 2002 to 2004. Upon obtaining the approval from local
tax bureau, the Company was eligible and entitled to 50% tax
relief for the 3 additional financial years from 2005 to 2007.

BT R ERR EEA R (“Launch Shanghai”), a
subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC, is subject
to income tax at the rate of 25% (2007: 27%). It is entitled
to the tax holiday of “two-year exemption and three-year
50% reduction” from the first profitable year of operation. No
provision for EIT has been made for Launch Shanghai as it

did not derive any taxable income for the year.

6 Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

REIBRAMER ([ REMEH ) A
SERLEMEENERREATBEHIEA
ZAEEHERBRAMEHBHE - AAFIZ
BN R BIZRIRA2% 2 TR NP 1S
i o

WRIE R B ABRRA G oA - AR BB
ERRMBEMEE - NAR)EKR18%
(ZZETLF 15%) 2R ERBWNFE
o RABIEREBN _—_SZTZTEFER=
ST -FHRFEZLEMSGH - BF
BRTEEN-EE_FE _TTF
B FEEZE0% MG R E - B 5
ERHE - ARRNMARZZTRFE
ZETLF = (AN RFEEZ50%
RBBE

EETiE#mEREEREEAR( LE
JCAE]) » AR BRI BRI E A A
TRR25% (=TT LF  27%) 2 B 5
METEE - Z AR AR & ELEER
FERAZAIMFRRR=FRY¥ %
T o AR EIBTTAER AN G E N A ]
FERTMA + HZ AR ER T EMS
RUVEH AT A B4 o
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B RE R AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

7R Y| T JT AL E4F B 3 A BR 2 B) (“Launch Software”), a
subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC, as a
software company recognised by the local tax bureau, is
subject to income tax at the rate of 18% (2007: 15%). It
is entitled to the tax holiday of “two-year exemption and
three-year 50% reduction” from the first profitable year of

operation.

Pursuant to the new PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which
was effective from 1 January 2008, a unified income tax rate
has been applied to Launch Shanghai in 2008. In respect
of the tax rate that applies to the Company and Launch
Software, these enterprises which enjoy a preferential tax rate
of 15% in the past are subject to a tax rate of 18% in 2008

and the tax rate will be transitioned to 25% over five years.

Launch Shanghai and Launch Software which originally
enjoyed the preference of regular tax holidays will continue to
enjoy original preference in accordance with the preferential
measures and terms stipulated by the original tax law,
administrative regulations and relevant documents until the
expiration of the preference.

The tax expense comprises:

Enterprise income tax-PRC
— current year —BFE
— overprovision for prior years

Income tax — overseas

/8B — i85

Income tax expense iz

TR H B33

EERMAEH-—FE

—BEFERERE

FrigHi< i ()

ARBRFBERL B RRRYIM T
E R EAR QA ([ TTEEM ) 1
REMBEHRE LRI RFIER18%
—TTHF 15%) B RGRAE
B ZARBRNEEREENFERE
AEBIMERRR=FRF BB -

RER=ZZZN\F—A—BRERZH
PRMEMEEE - BB REER
ZET)N\FREAR ST - stEAR
RATRITTAEE G 2HERME @ %50
ERIBTIR15% 2 BRBEREH - K=
T\ FRIFZ18% 2 TR G MFIE -
T R AG A AR R AL FIEINZE 25% o

FRAEZBEE R 2 L8 &It
- SRBRATE - ERERNE
RS E < THIR R S 36 e M IR A
FEREZHEARR HEVMBAR2H
JERALE

2008 2007
—EEN\F —FELF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR®BTT

5,414 -
133 -
1,792 101
7,339 101
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FEBixH (&)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting BT HEeRAIRER R RE
profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: ZﬁEEZZD—F :
2008 2007
—EENE —2EF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Profit before income tax FRET1S A A& A1 20,170 61,448
Tax at PRC income tax rate of 18% LR BIFTF TR R 18%

(2007: 15%) —TZTLF 1 15%)

o G | 3,631 9,217

Tax effect attributable to tax exemption GRS E (7,379) (17,368)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T—HDHEESEZTMW%; 835 1,461
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BRGNS 2 B E (4,073) ©1)
Tax losses not recognised as deferred RER BT IEEE

tax assets iy ati=! 12,801 6,791
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ KIB AR TR K 2 £ 1,391 91
Underprovision of EIT deferred taxation BEFELEMSHELE

in respect of prior years BETR 133 -
Income tax expense FriS iz i 7,339 101
The deferred tax assets are not recognised as it is uncertain FA A R BETETE R 2R B 75 FE =R Bt i ) AT
whether future taxable profit will be available for utilising the A RENRIEERE - At R ERIELES
accumulated tax losses. Under the current tax legislation, the THEEE - REBEBITRIEGE - HIEE
tax losses can be carried forward for five years from the year B REEEE TR FEASE -

the losses were incurred.

e Launch Tech Company Limited Z&IIT TTAEEHE IS B R A A
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11.

12.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &&=

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company for the year of RMB12,831,000 (2007:
RMB61,347,000), a loss of RMB8,468,000 (2007: profit
of RMB11,263,000) has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008
was declared.

A final dividend of RMBO0.02 (2007: RMBO0.05) per share
amounting to approximately RMB12,072,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2008 (2007: RMB30,180,000) has
been proposed by the directors after the balance sheet date.
The proposal is subject to approval by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend
proposed has not been recognised as a liability at the
balance sheet date, but reflected as an appropriation of
retained profits for the year ended 31 December 2008.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
RMB12,831,000 (2007: RMB61,347,000) and on weighted
average number of 603,600,000 and 560,623,562 shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007

respectively.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there
had been no dilutive potential ordinary shares in both years of
2008 and 2007.

B RE R AR AT

—EEN\F+_A=t+—HILEFE

10. REERF

11.

REEARRRIERFTE ARG ZEE
%IJ/\E%?%Q,SSLOOOE(:;?;ti :
AR 61,347,00070) F - HHARK
8,468,0007T(ZFZLF : ‘mA AR
11,263,000 7T ) Z BER AR 58 755
=R -

8=\

ARRYESRBE—ZTT/N\F+_H
=t BLEFEZHHRS -

EFNEFE ARRERREHE_ZTZ )\
FHZA=T—BHLEFECRERES
BRARK00R2T(ZEZTLE : ARK
0.057T) *+ &HK AR 12,072,000 7T
—TTLF : AR¥30,180,0007T) °
EEEZAFRRRNEERRBAFAZ
R - ZEFEARREREE B R
BERAEAE HERMAEEZE_ZTTN
F+ZA=+—HIEFEZRE RS
fig o

12. SRER

BREABADBRERARGIREFE
AT AR 12,831,000 (=F
TF : AR¥61,347,0007T) &5 3
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=t+—HALFECETRMIETHE
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At o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - MERRXME
Group &5
Construction Leasehold  Mould and Motor
in progress Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total

ERIR Ry HRUREE RARRE AE it
RMBO0O  RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMB'000

AEBTL  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2007 RZZT+E-A-H

Cost KA - 150,685 10,850 76,117 21924 259,576
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (10,759) (8,180) (16,327) (8,802) (44,068)
Net book amount FEFE - 139,926 2,670 59,790 13,122 215,508

Year ended 31 December 2007 HE-FE+E+-A=+-H

Jl:3:3

Opening net hook amount HREFE - 130,926 2,670 59,790 18,122 215,508
Additions AE - 20,732 36 10,827 3,185 34,780
Disposals e - (7.975) (421) (86) (1,259) (9,734)
Depreciation Vil - (6,932) (858) (12,852) (4,256) (24,899)
Closing net book amount HXEEFE - 145,751 1,427 57,679 10,799 215,656
At 31 December 2007 RZERLEFZA=1—H

Cost KA - 157,281 3,847 86,028 21,684 268,840
Accumulated depreciation ZitheE - (11530 R40) (8349  (l0g8s) (63,184
Net book amount REFE - 145,751 1,427 57,679 10,799 215,656
Year ended 31 December 2008 HE-FZ/\E+-A=1—H

I3

Opening net book amount HREEE - 145,751 1427 57,679 10,799 215,656
Additions AE 4,157 4,008 659 32,563 1239 42,626
Disposals e - - 67) (361) (1,446) (1,874)
Depreciation i3 - (6,426) (416) (12,348) (3,751) (22,941)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 4,157 143,333 1,603 77,533 6,841 233467
At 31 December 2008 RZZZNETZA=1-H

Cost KA 4,157 161,289 4,371 118,095 17,19 305,108
Accumulated depreciation ZihE - (17,956) (2,768) (40,562) (10,355) (71,641)
Net book amount FEFE 4,157 143,333 1,603 77,533 6,841 233,467

Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% ~ BEKRRE (&)
(Continued)
AT
Company
Construction Leasehold ~ Mould and Motor
in progress Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total

ERIR BT ARUREE RARRE it Lh
RMBO0O  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMB'O00

BT ARETT ARETR AR®TR ARETRL ARETR

At 1 January 2007 RZZT+E-A-A

Cost kA - 112,439 11,540 48,006 20,263 192,248
Accumulated depreciation ZitTE - (6,174 (8902) (9,059) (7,997) (32,126)
Net book amount RHFE - 106,265 2,638 38953 12,266 160,122

Year ended 31 December 2007 HZ-FE+E+-A=+—-H

IHFE

Opening net book value HIEEFE - 106,265 2,638 38,953 12,266 160,122
Additions RE - 20,722 36 7,848 3,185 31,791
Disposals e - (7.975) (421) (10) (1,259) (0,658)
Depreciation Vil - (5,115) (850) (7,458 (3.997) (17,420)
Closing net book amount HREEFE - 113,897 1,408 39,333 10,202 164,835
At 31 December 2007 R-ES+E+-A=1-H

Cost A - 119,025 3,815 55,783 20,023 198,646
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE - (5,128) (2412) (16,450) (9,821) (33,811)
Net book amount FEFE - 113,897 1403 39,333 10,202 164,835

Year ended 31 December 2008 HZE-FZ/\F+-A=1—H

58

Opening net book value B - 113,897 1403 39,333 10,202 164,835
Additions AE 4,157 3,679 601 20,113 1237 29,787
Disposals e - - 67) (321) (1,447) (1,835)
Depreciation ik - (4,609) (408) (6,601) (3,496) (15,108)
Transfer to subsidiaries BEEHEAT - - - (1,678) - (1,678)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 4,157 112973 1,529 50,846 6,496 176,001
At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\F+-A=1-H

Cost A 4,157 122,704 4,268 72,437 15,533 219,099
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - ©,781) (2,739) (21,591) (9,037) 43,098)
Net book amount FEFE 4,157 112,073 1529 50,846 6,496 176,001
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y15 ~ BE K&K (&)
(Continued)
Bank borrowings are secured on the Group’s and the RITIER T AR EB R AR RIREE
Company’s certain buildings for the carrying amount of 7 5l & A R #33,602,0007T & A R
RMB33,602,000 and RMB3,256,000 respectively (2007: #3,256,000 L(ZTZLF : ARK
RMB35,298,000 and RMB3,460,000 respectively). 35,298,0007T &2 A R #3,460,0007T) &)

HTBFIEEM -

14. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 14. FHET R T fERARE
RIGHTS
These are up-front payments to acquire the leasehold land St TR A& 1 b K - (F AR RERT 15
and land use rights and their carrying amount are analysed as ZFEE  EEmFESTOT ¢
follows:
Group &5
2008 2007

“TT)\F  CZTTLE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE  ARMTR

Outside Hong Kong held on: BB
Leases of over 50 years 50F sk A 24 1,036 1,101
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10FEE 505 24 20,891 21,352
21,927 22,453
2008 2007
—2ENF —EELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Opening carrying amount HAIRRE (B 22,453 23,794
Disposals k= - (750)
Annual charges of prepaid operating AR ERERNRK
lease payment ZEB (526) (591)
Closing carrying amount HARARE(E 21,927 22,453

e Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R
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B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

14. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 14, HEL MR T HERE (H)
RIGHTS (Continued)
Company AT]
2008 2007

—FENF —BBLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETET ARBTT

Outside Hong Kong held on: EBAIMNDE
Leases of over 50 years 50 F sk LA 24D 1,036 1,101
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10FEE 505 24 8,785 8,976
9,821 10,077
2008 2007
—ZETNF ZETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Opening carrying amount Y AR TE(E 10,077 11,149
Disposals e = (750)
Annual charges of prepaid operating A EBERNR
lease payment s (256) (322)
Closing carrying amount HRERE{E 9,821 10,077
Bank borrowings are secured on the Group’s and the RITERTIARE B R ARG REE
Company’s land for the carrying amount of RMB21,927,000 SR A AREE21927,000( 2 F
(2007: RMB22,453,000) and RMB9,821,000 respectively +F: AR¥2245300077m) X AR
(2007: RMB10,077,000). #9,821,000L(ZZETLF: AR

10,077,000 7T ) B0#5 T T i /EHEH o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

15. GOODWILL

Group

Opening and closing carrying amount HA%)) N BAR BR T 1
Closing carrying amount HRERTAE
Gross carrying amount IREBE
Accumulated amortisation EGE i
Closing net carrying amount HR AR A

The goodwill at 31 December 2008 comprises goodwill
arising from the acquisitions of Launch Shanghai, Launch
Software and Launch Europe GmbH (“Launch Europe”)
amounting to approximately RMB1.5 million, RMB1.2
million and RMB1.1 million respectively at the respective
dates of acquisition. Based on the impairment assessment
of the recoverable amount of goodwill using the value-in-
use calculations, covering a four-year cash-flow projections
discounted at 7% per annum, in the opinion of the directors,
no impairment provision (2007: Nil) is considered necessary
for the balance of the Group’s goodwill for the year.

e Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

2008 and 2007
“EET\ER-FELE
RMB’000

AREF

3,658

3,796
(138)

3,658

R-ZEENF+_A=+—"HZH
2 PEREWKE ST - TiEEE
¥ Launch Europe GmbH ([Launch
Europel) MELZEE - BNEKRIEHR
HA5 BI# AR ¥ 1,500,000 « AR
1,200,0007T K AR #1,100,0007T ° £
B REEEE B AW E 2 EIERE
AR - BUERNTEFIRESMEN 7% F
FEEITAIR - KBPAIFER  EFR
REAR R EEE 2 SRR ERE
(ZET+F |-



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

16. DEVELOPMENT COSTS 16. BAEE R A

2008 —EENF
Group Company
& NG
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%ETT
Opening carrying amount HA®IERE (B 43,975 15,889
Development labour cost capitalised B S E R AN EE R 13,370 2,227
Amortisation charge (note 6) #IEER (MEEe) (10,337) (3,744)
Closing carrying amount HASREREE 47,008 14,372
Gross carrying amount IREB(E 90,522 31,779
Accumulated amortisation Rt (43,514) (17,407)
Closing carrying amount HRAREE 47,008 14,372
2007 —ZELHF
Group Company
e N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETT
Opening carrying amount HA®IRR (A 41,247 37,172
Development labour cost capitalised FELBRNARBEEZR 11,982 2,871
Transfer to a subsidiary EE—HHEA A - (20,241)
Amortisation charge (note 6) #iHE R (fisEs) (9,254) (3,913)
Closing carrying amount HSREREE 43,975 15,889
Gross carrying amount IRMEB(E 77,152 29,552
Accumulated amortisation BT (33,177) (13,663)
Closing carrying amount HARARE(E 43,975 15,889

All amortisation is included in “research and development

expenses” in the income statement.

PRSI AR [HEER] A -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RMB AT 2RE

2008 2007
—TT)\F  CTTLE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE  ARMTR

Unlisted investments, at cost FELTHIRE - FRAAE 96,853 96,853
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December RZZEZENFTZA=1T—H ' ~QH
2008 are as follows: MEBARZFFIBRT ¢
Form of Place of Registered Percentage of
Name of business registration and fully registered capital
subsidiary structure and operations paid capital held by the Company Principal activities
HEARER HEME EMRERLY aMRERER  AAAREEMEARAL  EERH
directly indirectly
ER Rk
DETEERSE Limited liability PRC USD 10,000,000 75% 25% Manufacturing of
BREFLF company equipment and
(‘Launch Shanghai”) machines for
maintenance of
automobiles
DETEERSE BREMAR t 10,000,000 75% 25% BERERTS
BREFLE LEERE
(I bgit])
Launch Europe GmbH Limited liability Germany DM50,000 100% - Sales of accessories,
(“Launch Europe’) company equipment and
machines for the
automotive
aftermarket
Launch Europe GmbH BRELAH =e 50,00055% 100% - HERERTS
(“Launch Europe”) LB
REREE
AT TR Limited liability PRC RMB40,000,000 90% 10%  Development,
FEBRAT] company manufacturing and
(‘Launch Software”) sales of equipment for
the automotive
aftermarket
AYITTEE BREARF q: ARH 90% 10% FE - BEREE
REERDA 40,000,000 7 RERMIEZ
(et #

e Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R
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B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—EHE ARz xR
Group Company
£ AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
“TT)N\F ZTTHF “TTN\F el o3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Balance at 1 January R—A—B2#&# 7,636 389 11,350 1,350

Further investment in an E—TRE
associate R AT 5,000 10,000 5,000 10,000

Gain on deemed disposal RIEHE 2 s 4,244 - - -

Share of associate’s results il A=UNG (7,121) (2,753 - -

Balance at 31 December R+ZRA=+—Bz#&&% 9,759 7,636 16,350 11,350

Particulars of the associate at 31 December 2008 are as RZEZNFF+_A=+—8 " BEQ

follows: A2 BT

Place of Percentage of
Registered Fully paid registration interest held by

Name capital capital and operation the Company

28 HfER BEhEx  IRMREELY NGt SRl

LETEERRAE RMB118,500,000 RMB118,500,000 PRC 13.8%
RBER AR (2007: RMB54,500,000) (2007: RMB49,500,000) (2007: 30%)
(“SK Launch”)

HETERRSE AR 118,500,000 7 AR 118,500,000 HE 13.8%
REERAR (ZF24F : ARIES45000007) (ZFTLF : AR49,500,0007T) (Z25LF : 30%)
(TSK Launch )

On 25 April 2008, the board of directors of SK Launch NRZZEENEWPA -+ HH SK

approved an increase in registered capital from LaunchZ S 2 #t L MaEft & K

RMB4,500,000 to RMB54,500,000. The Group had to M A R #4,500,0007T # = A R #&

further inject RMB15,000,000 for the investment in the 54,500,0007T ° ANEEEFEINEFEAR

associate and RMB10,000,000 was fully paid in 2007. The #15,000,0007T EREE A F] - R

remaining RMB5,000,000 was fully paid during the year. TELFE X ARK10,000,0007T °

FRE BB AR 5,000,0007T
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B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—REIBE N T 2% ()

(Continued)

During the year, the shareholders of SK Launch approved
an increase in registered capital from RMB54,500,000
to RMB118,500,000 and agreed that one of the existing
shareholders other than the Company was committed to
inject the additional RMB64,000,000. As a result, on 1 July
2008, the Group’s interest in SK Launch was reduced to
13.8% and a gain on deemed disposal of RMB4,244,000
was dealt with in the income statement.

Although the Group’s interest in SK Launch reduced to
less than 20%, the Group continues to have significant
influence on SK Launch’s operations which is evidenced by
the Group’s representation on the board of directors of SK
Launch. Accordingly, the Group continues to account for SK
Launch as an associate in the financial statements.

The summarised financial information of the associate

extracted from its PRC audited financial statements are as

follows:

Assets BE
Liabilities =L
Revenues e
Loss for the year FREE

e Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

A SK Launch &L A5 5 E & A
M A R 54,500,000 T 12 A R #
118,500,000 7T * WRIEEH —KBRE
BB (AR RIBRIN) AGEFEINEAA R
64,000,0007T ° AL - R=ZFZNF L
B—H » A&EER SK Launch 2 25
DZE13.8% - AR 4,244,000 2
BIEH E WS E KA SR o

7 W

REAEBNSK Launch Z SR E
20%  AEE B ¥ SK Launch
HERBEATE  HAKEERSK
LaunchEZzZ=g 2N KERIFEH o
b AREBEEBNI K RERPESK
Launch %I {EB & A ] o

7]

S

A EPBERERY MR 2 A EH
EBRAPHERBENT

2008 2007
it A —
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

109,300 71,438
38,571 34,415
21,108 4,928
(34,839) (9,253)




19.

20.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE R AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

CLUB MEMBERSHIP 19. EFEH
Group and Company
TSNS
2008 2007
—ETNF —E2TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT
Lifetime club membership, at cost WAL gEE  BKAYIER 1,177 =
The Group plans to hold this membership for the foreseeable REBGENA RASRFFA LS5 -
future.
INVENTORIES 20. 78
Group Company
SE NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZEBETLHF TN\ F ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETRTE ARETT AREBTT
Raw materials R 43,012 29,315 9,179 16,512
Work in progress FK fh 9,179 7,529 3 2,826
Finished goods BURK G 24,459 46,321 7,577 38,684
76,650 83,165 16,759 58,022

In 2007, the Group and the Company made a specific
provision for slow-moving inventories of RMB495,000 and
RMB261,700 respectively which was included in other
operating expenses in the consolidated income statement.
No provision for slow-moving inventories is made for the

current year based on management’s assessment.

RZTBZTLF  AEERARRDRIF
S 1F B VERR B B A R 495,000 7T
M ARE 261,700 © G AWERE
AR RFIER - EREEETMG -
REE W MBI TFE VB I8 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EIRE SR
The fair values of trade receivables are as follows: EWE SRR AFEWT :
Group Company
= NE]
2008 2007 2008 2007

“TTN\F ZTTEFE ZTT)\F ZTTtF
RVMB'000  RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARBTT

Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR 249,097 262,514 234,607 203,331
Less: provision for R EICE 5 AR

impairment of BB

receivables (10,363) (10,932) (9,600) (10,932)

238,734 251,682 225,007 192,399

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade FLIEWE 5 BR F AR E (E L B ry &
receivables is as follows: W
Group Company
&= AF]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ZT)N\F i 3 “ZTN\F e el o3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Balance at 1 January W—HA—Bz &t 10,932 10,571 10,932 10,571
Amount written off MiHeE (10,932) (10,571) (10,932) (10,571)
Impairment loss charged Pz R AR 2
to the income statement REER 10,363 10,932 9,600 10,932
Balance at 31 December RTZR=t—B2#&# 10,363 10,932 9,600 10,932
At each of the balance sheet date, the Group’s trade RE—HEH @ ANEB 2 EIE SRR
receivables were individually and collectively determined for 2EEERAEESSERE - FEiE
impairment purposes. The individually impaired receivables BEZ BYERFTRE P 2 E8EE
are recognised based on the credit history of its customers, MREZ IR ~ R URER
indication of financial difficulties, default in payments, TR T IARERR o [ 1tk B HERRRT Bl R (B 5%
and current market conditions. Consequently, specific 15 - AEBWES M EEBTFT A ERE
impairment provision was recognised. The Group does not o (iR ER s R R LEETE) o

hold any collateral over these balances, whether determined

on individual or collective basis.

e Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R
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B RE R AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are

recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is

satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case

the impairment loss is written off against trade receivables

directly.

The Group’s credit terms are one to six months for its trade

customers. The following is the ageing analysis of trade

receivables, based on the invoice dates, as at 31 December

2008:

Within 6 months

Over 6 months but less
than 1 year

Over 1 year but less
than 2 years

21. EWWE ZRF (&)

IEKE SRR ZRERE  ~AEEE
ERNRERT - BRIFAKEMREAR
W Bz IRR AT R MR IE - B RREE
B ERNERE SRR

AEBRTEESEP—EX EBAZE
EH - UTARBEZAHZEERES
RN _TTN\F+_A=1T—RHZK
R

Group Company
£E NG|

2008 2007 2008 2007

—TENFE —TELEFE —ZTTN\F —TTLF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETRT AR®TT ARETT

ANEAA 108,068 136,782 95,317 97,590
NEA K EBED

R—F 84,096 72,111 83,695 57,673

—F LA B
RRE 46,570 42,689 45,995 37,136
238,734 251,582 225,007 192,399

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due as

at the balance sheet date but not impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor
impaired
Overdue within 1year

REEHEARETEREZEKRES

R BRI DTN T
Group Company
&H NG
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ETTNF ZTTLF —TTN\F ZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AREBTT ARETET
I £ 26 BA OB A
96,488 100,385 94,130 59,690
BME—FLAT 142,246 151,197 130,877 132,709
238,734 251,582 225,007 192,399

Annual Report 2008 —ZZ )\ FE ) e



Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of customers that the Group had continuing
business relationships with these customers including sales
to and settlements from these customers in general, which in

the opinion of the directors have no indications of default.

Included in trade receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency

of the entity to which they relate:

W E 5 R (&)

EEHERERE - BEAEE G
BEBHRAEZZEREPABZEBUER
R BRREETREEFPRZEE
Pz EERRL BTGB
R o

L

Group Company

£H
2008

A7

2007 2008 2007

T\ —ETtE -—TTN\F -TTtE

— ==

RMB’000

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARETET ARBTT ARETE

183,468 179,939 142,162

United States dollars ETT
(“US$”) 182,714
22. BILLS RECEIVABLES 22.

The fair values of bills receivables are as follows:

BWEE

R RE 2 RFEWAT

Group Company

£E
2008

A7)

2007 2008 2007

—2T)\5 —TTtFE -—TE\F —TTtF

— ==

RMB’000

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT

Bills receivables aged BRERTE/NEL A LA
within 6 months 2 EWEE 1,433

2,510 1,000 1,000

@ Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 23. HiuEWFE - & RFES
PREPAYMENTS g
Group Company
=) AT
2008 2007 2008 2007

—ER/\F —TTt+F —FTIT/\F _FELF
RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREBETT ARETRT

Deposits Be 464 555 78 143
Prepayments TEfFRIE 6,071 6,521 5,704 6,067
Other receivables H fth e GRIE 106,820 100,271 90,112 87,698
Software tax refundable AR B #R A 9,382 2,589 1,108 957
Value added tax RED 44,376 32,478 42,520 29,913
Dividend receivable JE W — 1 BT /8 A A

from a subsidiary 2R - - 45,000 99,000

167,113 142,414 184,522 223,778

Less: provision for W E A FEGRIE

impairment on 2 ER

other receivables (2,497) - (2,497) -

164,616 142,414 182,025 223,778
Included in other receivables are advances to the staff of the HAbEUGRIABIERAEE KA A EE
Group and the Company which amounted to RMB5,895,000 BRIECER  BeEDREARK
and RMB5,554,000 respectively (2007: RMB9,047,000 5,895,000 7t & A K% 5,554,000 7T (=
and RMB8,696,000) in aggregate. Such advances are T HF : AR®9,047,000 AR
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. #£8,696,0007T ) © thAR#AFRIAL AR -
RERAREERMKER o

As at 31 December 2008, other receivables included an RZZEZENFE+_A=+—8 ' HithfE
amount of RMB1,158,000 (2007: Nil) which was held under WHIABEA R ERLHEERELE
custodian by the Company’s director namely Mr. Liu Jun in Bl EBBABRFULETNRFECAR
the course of business of the Group. These amounts were ¥ 1,158,000 T (ZZZLF : ) - Z
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. LA REER - RERENEKEE

o

Rl
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

24,

25.

26.

27.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The deposits are pledged to banks to secure certain banking

facilities granted to the Group and the Company.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group is
RMB83,432,000 (2007: RMB104,271,000) of bank balances
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is
not a freely convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of
the Group are denominated in RMB of RMB83,972,000
(2007: RMB105,190,000), US$ of RMB10,940,000 (2007:
RMB68,023,000), Euro (“EUR”) of RMB2,639,000 (2007:
RMB1,990,000) and other currencies of RMB32,000 (2007:
Nil).

@ Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

24.

25.

26.

27.

MR R (&EXR)

ZHASEEA - 28 RKBAEE

—EBE X R

RS EE - 28 RGBS E

oo
= ©

SR HRITERK

FREEMTIRT - FRETAKER
ARBETRITRE 2 HM -

RERBEEEY

AAREERTRASESHATRR
FRENUARESFEZRITESHARE
83,432,000t (T tF: AR
104,271,0007T) © AR IET] B B
Rigz B o BIEHE A2 SNEEIR
EIRARAETE - SERMNESERT -
REEEESBER A EITINEER 2
RITHE AR K BINE o

REEER » AEE RS RIRITERE
AR®83,972,000L(ZZTZFLF : A
R #105,190,0007T) A A REE5HE
AR®10,940,000 L (ZZZFEF : A
R #68,023,0007C ) LAZE LT E - A
E#2,639,000t(ZTZLF: AR
#1,990,0007T ) ABUTAHE R A R
32,0007c(ZZTTLF : &) UEME
BEETHE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. BN E Z R
The ageing analysis of trade payables as at 31 December RZZEENF+_A=1+—"H ENHE
2008 is as follows: DERAZ BB T -
Group Company
CSE] NS
2008 2007 2008 2007

—ER/\F —TTt+F —FTIT/\F _FELF
RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREBETT ARETRT

Within 6 months ~MEAA 41,547 54,876 5,748 16,155
Over 6 months but 7~ EA A E
less than 1 year BLR—F 7,920 7,105 1,006 4,733
Over 1 year but less —F M F
than 2 years BLRME 11,296 2,406 105 691
60,763 64,387 6,859 21,579
29. BORROWINGS 29. B8
Group Company
SE] N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ZT)\F ZZTF “ZTN\E e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Bank loans BITER
Secured BHER 318,152 337,926 318,152 337,926
Unsecured AR 1,476 969 = =
319,628 338,895 318,152 337,926
Less: Current portion B BERNRD
due within one BEET—F
year included under R
current liabilties 55 (278,865) (233,323) (278,152) (232,926)
Non-current portion BERIERSAREE
included under W R
non-current liabilities 40,763 105,572 40,000 105,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

29. BORROWINGS (Continued) 29. f8E (&)

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s and the Company’s RoBENE+-A=+—01  &~&F

RARBZEEERTFIHRER

borrowings were repayable as follows:

Group Company
=8 YNC]

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF EBELF TETNF TTLHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARKETT ARETET
Within one year —F A 278,865 233,323 278,152 232,926
In the second year RE—F 40,563 90,396 40,000 90,000
In the third to the fifth year HE=FEFHF 200 15,176 - 15,000

319,628 338,895 318,152 337,926

All bank borrowings are repayable in one to three years
since the draw down date. Bank borrowings for the Group
of RMB222,476,000 (2007: RMB150,968,000) and for the
Company of RMB221,000,000 (2007: RMB150,000,000)
bear a fixed interest rate at 5.51% (2007: 5.82%) and at
6.95% (2007: 5.59%) per annum respectively. The remaining
borrowings bear floating rates ranging from 4.86% to 8.96 %
(2007: 5.58% to 8.89 %) per annum.

At 31 December 2008, the banking facilities of certain
subsidiaries and the Company, were secured by land,
buildings, fixed deposits of the Group as detailed in
note 13, 14 and 26 and personal guarantee provided by
certain shareholders/directors. Such banking facilities
amounted to RMB759,279,000 to the Group (2007:
RMB400,295,000) and RMB757,347,000 to the Company
(2007: RMB399,218,000) respectively. The Group and
the Company had utilised an amount of RMB304,628,000
(2007: RMB275,375,000) and RMB303,152,000 (2007:
RMB274,407,000) respectively, at 31 December 2008.

e Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

FIEHRITEEAMNERAZ —FE5=F
BEE - AEBRARBMEITEES
Bl & AR 222 476,000 0 ( —TZT+
F: AR#150,968,00070) & AR
221,000,000 (ZZTZ+F : AR
150,000,0007T) + % All#% & & & FI| &
551E (=TT +F : 5.82E)%6.95F
ZETHF  559E)FHE - A#MEE
AN T486EZE896E(ZFTZLF :
5.58[EE 8.80[F) < IFBVFEFIKETE o

R-ZETZNE+—_A=+—H  HTH
BRARIRAARZRITBEAREE
2 BF - EEFER (EMEE 18
14 R26ATFM) RETRE " EEIR
HZEAERERER - ZEAEH
ZRITELE REA K 759,279,000
T(ZEE L5 : AR 400,295,000
L) RAFZIRITRHER A AR
757,347,000 ( Z 2T £ F: AR
#399,218,0007T ) c M Z T ZT J\ F
+ZA=+—H8 ' AEERAREE
&) A AR ¥ 304,628,000 C( — T+
& AR¥275,375,00070) M AR
303,152,000 ( ZZEZT+F : ARM
274,407,0007C) °
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30.

31.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Included in borrowings are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency

of the entity to which they relate:

29. 5 E (%)

EEER TNINREZSERAMCE
BZMEEBIN AR EZEHE -

Group Company
e NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—22N\F 2 F —TTN\F ZZTTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETT ARBTT ARETET

uss$ ETT 14,151

28,357 14,151 28,375

DEFERRED TAX

As at 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company did

not have material unprovided deferred tax liabilities.

30. IEFERIIR

R-ZEZENF+-_A=+—8H ' ~&EH
K N RIBE AT {a] B AR B 2 IR TR
IHEE -

SHARE CAPITAL 31. &=
Number of shares Registered,
RIAEE issued
Domestic and and fully paid
unlisted foreign shares HShares &t B&1T
RERE LTIMER HE& REK
'000 '000 RMB’000
Tt TR ARETT
Share capital of RMB0.10 each  SREEARE0.10 7T 2 KA 330,000 228,000 55,800
Issue of H Shares BITHRR - 45,600 4,560

At 31 December 2007 and 2008 R=EZ+ &K —TZN\F+-F=1+—H

330,000 273,600 60,360

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
the restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC
investors or foreign investor, domestic and unlisted foreign
shares and H Shares rank pari passu in all respects with each
other.

R MBE BB R BRI SF
HREEHINEREEI  RE - K
ETINEREE HIRAE R 5 = A R S

o

JS
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZEZT/N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 31. R4 (&)

R-_ZZ+F+-_H+—H  KAQAF
MBI EEREINHR - LLERHR
1638 T2 BRAERABITEREMBEA
R ¥ 0.10 7T 2 %7 H % 45,600,000 f% °
RHERRETKE » NRFZE#T
DB E R B EITHRR G D RIEE
603,600,000 fi% & 273,600,000 % °

On 11 December 2007, the Company, by means of placing
of new H shares to institutional investors, issued and allotted
an aggregate of 45,600,000 new H Shares of RMB 0.10 each
at a price of HK$1.63 per H Share. After the completion of
the subscription of H Shares, the Company’s number of total
issued shares and issued H shares increased to 603,600,000
shares and 273,600,000 shares respectively.

32. RESERVES 32. f#E

£E

AEE T EBESBEURNEER
BIEEE 2 EBEB 2R
W T A ERBBHMEN o F
FTAES  ARSRIHHHZ
P R IR T SCHIEE (o) $051 o

(@ Group (a)
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements. Nature and purpose
of the statutory surplus reserve, public welfare fund and
retained profits are explained in note (b) below.

(b) Company (b) 2F
Statutory
Share surplus Public Retained
premium reserve  welfare fund profits Total
R EE  AEARS N REEF act
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AR%TR  ARETr AREBTR  ARETR
At 1 January 2007 RZZZ+5-F—H 226,488 15,601 15,601 48,015 305,705
Issue of H shares BITHIR 66,236 - - - 66,236
Share issue expenses RABIER (8514) - - - (8514)
Appropriations i - 3,779 3,779 (7,558) -
Profit for the year ERA - - - 11,263 11,263
2007 proposed final dividend “ELLERERERE - - - (30,180) (30,180)
At 31 December 2007 and R-ZETLF+-A=1—-H

at 1 January 2008 k=TT \5-A-H 284,210 19,380 19,380 21,540 344,510
Loss for the year FEER - - - (8,468) (8,468)
2008 proposed final dividend ZET\ERERERE = = - (12,072) (12,072)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE+ZA=1+—H 284,210 19,380 19,380 1,000 323,970

@ Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ-ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

32. f## (%)

Company (Continued) (b) AE](HE)

Notes: Bt

(i) Share premium (i) BHRE
Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over A& 19 5% B T AR A Bl AR LA (B 31T
the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued at a BREES MBREITRHDER
premium, less the amount of expenses incurred in connection % ERMEEIER -
with the issue of the shares.

(ii) Statutory surplus reserve (ii) EEAES
The Company’s Articles of Association requires the RABIABIERBEETFHBRTE
appropriation of 10% of profit after income tax each year to wAZ10% ERAEEAES B
the statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% EEHED MR 2 50% ALk ©
of the registered share capital. According to the provision BBEARRBRRBERZRE  E—
of the Company’s Articles of Association, under normal RIBEBAT  EAERERETARE
circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall only be HEE  BREARERARIEFTA
used for making up losses, capitalisation into share capital and RRIZEERER - REEE AR
expansion of the Company’s production and operation. For the ERABARAEZERAME @ ZFEE
capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the RNIER 2 FIRFRIBE DR MR
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% A2 25% ° AR N ER 2 E% Ty A
of the registered share capital. The transfer to the statutory RIERE e ERIFT AR 2 B3R
surplus reserve is based on the net profit in the financial KPP ZFMBERELE -
statements prepared under PRC accounting standards.

(i)  Public welfare fund i) A=

Public welfare fund represents the appropriation of profit after
income according to the requirements of the Company’s
Articles of Association and the PRC Company Law. According
to the requirements, the Company shall make allocation from
profit after income tax at the rate of 5% to 10% to the public
welfare fund. The public welfare fund can only be utilised
on capital items for employees’ collective welfare. Individual
employees only have the right to use these facilities, the titles
to which will remain with the Company. The public welfare fund
forms part of the shareholders’ equity but is not distributable
other than in liquidation. The transfer to the public welfare fund
was based on the net profit in the financial statements prepared
under PRC accounting standards in the past. However,
there is no longer statutory requirement for appropriation and
therefore, no appropriate is made for the current year. The
appropriation is subject to the shareholders’ approval in the
annual shareholders meeting of the Company.

T RBRERARE TEERHN
ZRwmIAR - @R 8 TEFEER
HIFT 2 &R Mkt A
BRART] - REe AR Z 5
D BRIBRIMBDIK - A
BB DURBBEZPEES
RN AR 2 B 15 Sk o 2 AR
REZE o R - ARNBERERE
B AR - B ANFEY EAEH
D DEEAFRRRART] 2K
RBFRE L -
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32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. A (&)

(b) Company (Continued) AaE] (#])

(b)

REEF

AHED IR TRR 2 FEETRETE
B RERREFLEEERMN G
FHERIEERE 2 AN 2 R R ) 7
BN R EE RN 2 AR AR
BERE)  THBRAFRERS
EERBER ARSI ERAHE -

(iv) Retained profits (iv)
The reserve available for distribution to shareholders is based
on the lower of the aggregate amount of profit after income tax
for the year and retained profits brought forward determined
under PRC accounting regulations and that determined under
Hong Kong generally accepted accounting principles after
deduction of the current year’s appropriations to the statutory

surplus reserve and public welfare fund.

33. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

33. KEBEERERME

Non-cash transaction:
SHeREYHAREA1,177,000T2 E
BERZEELFEELN -

The cost of club membership of approiximately
RMB1,177,000 was prepaid in 2007.

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34. KEHNAIE
As at 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company had R-ZZEENF+_A=+—H  ~&EE
commitments for future minimum lease payments in respect KA N GIRIR AT RS 2 - & A A pt -
of land and buildings under non-cancellable operating leases W REFENRTIIFRAZNBEZ &
which fall due as follows: EFADASENT
Group Company
£F NC]|
2008 2007 2008 2007
“TTN\F —TELF -TT\F —ITTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETET ARETT ARETT
Within one year —FA 3,567 3,917 1,578 2,446
In the second year FE_FEFRHF
to fifth year 5,288 8,288 2,098 3,138
After the fifth year AFLAE 49 67 49 67
8,904 12,272 3,725 5,651

The lease payments are fixed and no arrangements have

been entered into for contingent rental payments.

@ Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IITTAERHZ AR (D B IR A R
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35. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 35.

ARRANGEMENTS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company had
future aggregate minimum lease receipts in respect of land
and buildings under non-cancellable operating leases as

ARREEENZHE

RZZBZNF+A=+—8 " F~5E
RARBEREN AR < E LB
i MEF R AT FHANER 2 RIEHE

follows: ST :
Group Company
e AR]

2008 2007 2008 2007

—ETN\EFE —TBELE —TT\FE —TTLE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETRE AR®TT AR®TT

Within one year —FRN 7,512 5,554 10,860 5,554
In the second year E_FEFERF

to fifth year 27,038 16,092 27,038 16,092

After the fifth year AFELAE - 18 - 18

34,550 21,664 37,898 21,664

The Group and the Company leases certain portion of the
buildings (note 13) under operating lease arrangements
which run for an initial period of one to five years. The terms
of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits. There is no arrangement of contingent rental

receivables.

AEERARRBRBEELHELD (N F
HA—FE20F)HEETETED (K
FE13) ° WFERL Z IR —RETHAMR
ANBXNERE o WEGRMARIEE
B2 Rk
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HE—TEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EARKIE
Group Company
£ NG
2008 2007 2008 2007

“RTN\F —TTLE —TT/\F CTTLF
RMB'000  RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETET

Capital expenditure EEAMERR
contracted but not g e ik
provided for in the BARX
financial statements:
— expenditures on —ERIRRERX
construction-
in-progress 14,920 = 14,920 =
— capital injections to — [ —EHE AR
an associate AE - 5,000 - 5,000

14,920 5,000 14,920 5,000

0 Launch Tech Company Limited F3IIHTEERHE AR D AR A 7
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme approved
by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company dated 21
March 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the Company, for
the purpose of encouraging the participants to perform their
best in achieving the goals of the Group, may grant options
to employees including any directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries to subscribe for the H Shares in the Company.
An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 28
days from the date of offer, and a consideration of RMB1.00
is payable by each of the participants on acceptance of the
grant of options. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid
for a period of ten years commencing on 21 March 2002.
An option may be exercised at any time during a period to
be notified by the directors of the Company to each grantee
provided that the period within which the option must be
exercised shall be not less than two years and not more than
10 years from the date of grant. The subscription price for H
Shares under the Share Option Scheme will be determined
by the directors and notified to each grantee and will be no
less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the H Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the
average closing price of the H Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a H Share.

37. BRESTE

BIBEERAGIRRERN ST _F=H
T+ BZAREAMBACARAER
RS ([ERERTE])  AAF AR
BoHEEREREER ALz BIZ
AAEE (BIEARRHIENB AR Z
FRZESE) R TERE  URBEAQF
ZHER - BR2EEFREME THERE
ZEZVEREZABET TN \BR
B B TREIREREABIN
KEARB100T - BRENEZE
MERN —EE—F= A —t+—Hist5H
H1F - GEREATRAAREZESR
MBZERAZ R EARBERTTE « R
ARBEZR T1TE 2 R EARR B 2 B ABRT T
ARERRE RRNTF o BElRERT 1R
THR RBERRESETRBAX
BA - REBETSERUAT=EZ2&5
H QEREEREBH(WERZEXR)
HEE R B X Fr2 B3R AT 2 Wi fE
(o) BER HERE B AT AL %A H
AR B 22 BT B Rk FT 51 2 SEAA UL TR A(E
K (HEZEE -
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 37. BRAETE (8)

However, for employees who are PRC nationals and have
taken up any options to subscribe for the Company’s H

Shares, they shall not be entitled to exercise the options until:

(i) The current restrictions imposed by the relevant PRC
laws and regulations restricting PRC nationals from
subscribing for and dealing in H Shares or any laws and
regulations with similar effects have been abolished or

removed; and

(i)  The China Securities Regulatory Commission or other
relevant government authorities in the PRC have
approved the new issue of H Shares upon the exercise
of any options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

The total number of H Shares subject to the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of issued H Shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The total number of H
Shares available for issue under options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes, must not in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the number of H Shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The Company may seek
approval from shareholders in general meeting for renewing
the 10% limit or for granting further options beyond the 10%
limit, provided that the options in excess of the 10% limit
are granted only to participants specifically identified by the

Company before such approval is sought.

No employee of the Company or its subsidiaries shall be
granted an option which, if all the options granted to the
employee (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant, shall not

exceed 1% of the H Shares in issue at the date of grant.

No option has been granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

e Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IIT TAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

A - B BEERY 2 AR REAR
RAHBZ BB 2 B B EE L TR
BT

) FTEHEHERGIEBRIABLESR
HE R ROAR N AB LK
N2 ERMERBR I Z R
B RERR SRR ¢ &

i) FEEFEEEEREZEQUTHE
H A A8 B 2 R 4 R kA R A
BT BRI TR IR AT
HAX

BRERt B R R b B A iR T BIFTY
Kz Hi#a g & AR B A R BT
BE1TH R230% ° FEAHERT &I S (1]
HAbFT S|P RE R M Al 31T 2 H AR
REA AT ABBAR AR TREETH
PREE Z210% ° ARRIAIRIRAG S
SRAKER AL/ 5 ¥ 10% R B Sl HE/fEE —
SR 10%R AR 2 BRE - HEER
A1 SR TARLAE RT AN A BT B SRE 2
ZEERTEEIBUI0%REE < BAE -
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RETIREMENT PLANS

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
8.0% to 22.5% of the basic salaries of its employees to the
retirement plans, and has no further obligation for the actual
payment of the previous or post retirement benefits. The
relevant state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for
the entire present obligation to retired employees.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions were carried out with a related
party:

Sales to an associate

Sales to an associate were conducted in the normal course
of business at prices and terms no less than those charged
to and contracted with other third party customers of the
Group.

The Group did not enter into any material related party
transactions during the year other than as disclosed above
and elsewhere in the financial statements.

HET HBERQ

38.

39.

l

RKETE

REBEPEDER ML ZRE - AREA
RETEESREIRE B2 BIRFTEIH
Ko AREAXNBITEARFHE8.0%
£22.5% 2 G BRIER/ERNGTE 2K -
HEf B 3 75 ST (TR IRBT IR AR F 2 BRRAY
o Rz BREBRINGTEIAR B RE
BB TAEMARITRE

BEREALZRS

ATRZBEMBEATETZIRS ¢

2008 2007
—BEN\F —BRLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRE  ARBTR
5,468 2,771

HE T —HEE AR ELERERBKBIE
o R NERE S AR E H A =
HEPRINLZ G K2 B R FTETT -

Bk EX R AREATG IR EAD B D P IER &
SN FA - AEREAERT AT EAR
BALRS
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. BF7SE B B 1R &K BUR

POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks such as
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk), liquidity risk and credit risk, which result from both its

operating and investing activities.

The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage the Group’s exposure to these risks. Generally, the
Group employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk
management. The overall objectives in managing financial
risks focus on securing the Group’s short to medium term
cash flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets.
The Group does not hold any derivative financial instruments

for speculative purpose.

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are set out
in note 3.14 and 3.20 to the financial statements respectively.

() Interest rate risk
The Group has no significant interest bearing assets
apart from cash and bank deposits. The Group
currently have bank borrowings with fixed and floating
interest rates as disclosed in note 29.

G Launch Tech Company Limited &I TAERHZ AR B IR A R

AEBAAZTRTHRER - flanmhs
R\ (R IEINERR R ARER) - RE
ExRBRLEERR  ZEFRBRHRE
HEENRERD -

AEEN EEmMREREERRNIES
Rl BEEFSTEHMRTEE - UOW
Kl E RS B R AR EAAR 22 ER,
@ —RME  AREREREREER
RRTERES - EEMKRER BB ER
STREBFEREAKER SRS
EAZZER  EASERSEHES
HRERE - AREAEFGIEBER
BEETESRIA -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

At 31 December 2008, the Company was exposed
to changes in market interest rates through its bank
deposits and borrowings, which are subject to
variable interest rates. The following table illustrates
the sensitivity of the net result for the year and equity
to a reasonably possible change in interest rates of
+1% and-1% (2007: +1 and-1%), with effect from the
beginning of the year. These changes are considered
to be reasonably possible based on observation of
current market conditions. The calculations are based
on the Group’s and the Company’s bank deposits and
borrowings held at each balance sheet date. All other
variables are held constant.

Group
8
2008 2008

+1% -1%

2007

“TT\F ZTT\F ZFTtF “TTHF —TT\F ZZT\&

+1%

40. BT E B B IR RIBR (48)

(i)

2007

-1%

=@ ()

R_ZEENF+_A=+—8"
RARBEBERITERREER
EmEFEEFHHER - FF0
FREME © TRAPAFEF
FE NSRS E I A] g2
MEBDAB(ZZEZLF : 15
MESHD1%) URE - B F
FIREAERR o 35 L B BRI EIRAT
MRANEBR REGEM TR
o StERBASERAQTR
BEEEBRENRITERAREE
fEH o FrB H A A # B =REFT

1k

e o

Company
A
2008 2008 2007 2007
ZTTtF ZTTtE

+1% -1% +1% -1%

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'00D RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARBTL ARBTE ARETIL ARBTRL ARBTL ARETI ARETR

Net (loss)/profit for ~EEF
the year (B518),/ i (231) 231 (208) 208 (231) 231 (205) 205
Credit risk iy EERR

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. It is the
Group’s policy that receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis. The allowance for impairment has
been made to reduce the exposure to the credit risk in
relation to the receivables. Other than this there are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group
in relation to other financial assets.

EWE ZER R E RS TRIE L
BREE IRAEBZERE
ERBZEXNERERR - NAF
B TH 548 B SR IR MR R BR AR
I B VIR (5 5t R 2 B2 B WU RR IR
BRZEERR - BRARKEE
S REEAIAL A A S B E
EHRECERNEERR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(iii)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes
in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily
to certain trade receivables, certain cash and cash
equivalents and certain bank borrowings in currencies
other than the functional currency of RMB.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Germany.
The functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries are mainly RMB and EUR with certain
transactions being settled in US$ and EUR. The Group
mainly exposes to foreign currency risk arising from the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in
USS.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and

liabilities, translated into RMB at the closing rate, are as

40. I E R EIE KRB (8)

(iii)

SN [\ B2
REBREINEERBBEAE 2T

SRk TBEANEEEAR
BIMNERIECETRKE S
B ETHERASEFEYMR
AT RITIEEHER -

SNEBURE
AEEEBETELBEREE -
RRBREMBRRZEEER
FERARBRET ETRS
NETRBTEE - AEETE
EHAKEURTIECERE
ERBEELZINERR -

THIASNE B B S RA
EREERGEEHKTERS

follows: ERARE :
Group Company
£H NS
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBEENF EBELF TETNF TTLHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETE AR®TT ARETT
Us$ =TT 179,503 223,134 221,144 214,434
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. B EREE R BUER (E)

POLICIES (Continued)

(iii) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

A 5% strengthening/weakening of RMB against
US$ as at the respective balance sheet dates would
(decrease)/increase the profit after income tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities) by the amount shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.

(iii)

SN R B (4

IREREEER - ARKEHRET
o8 H355% - BRPAIS B &R A
(HNEBEENBEZAFE
23) CRd) HEnmz BB
TRAR - WA ITREME E A
S (FHIRNR) @RS TE -

Group EE
Increase/ Increase/(decrease)
(decrease) in net profit
Zan/ Od) SEREE M/ Od)
2008 2007
—ZTEN\F ZZTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T AREBT T
If RMB strengthen PUPN ST Sy 2T
against US$ 5% (8,975) (11,157)
If RMB weaken MARME R ETHES
against US$ (5%) 8,975 11,157
Company A=
Increase/ Increase/(decrease)
(decrease) in net profit
g/ Cfd) SEFERE M/ Cd)
2008 2007
—ZETNF ZETTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
If RMB strengthen IMAREE H 2 TeEod
against US$ 5% (11,057) (10,722)
If RMB weaken AR R ETES
against US$ (5%) 11,057 10,722
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZEZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk
The Group exercised liquidity risk management policy
by maintaining sufficient cash level and the availability

of adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet
date of the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be

required to pay.

0 Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IIT TAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

40. BT E R EIE RIBEK (8)

(iv)

REBETERE
REBHEFEAKFZRERE
EHEERERHEZBRE  AITRY
BeEREEBR °

AEBNBRASEREEERD
BEeFFR  WHTENRZH  #
R ERE RABRERA
BESNHE  ARTBEHHE
BRRHARCARESHEE @ &
NEHEBRERRBESTR -
AEBRARRITESHMEBE
MEE AR N A OB HIF0E
RESORBARSR(BRERE
REMRFENF SR - X
WAERE  REEERNRTH
) RAKET R EZTH &
FRH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HE—ZTZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

40. FIEEREERBUER (K)

POLICIES (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) REESER (&)
2008 —ET)N\F
Group Company
£8 A
Total Inthe Total Inthe
contractual  Within one Inthe  third year contractual  Within one Inthe  third year
Carrying undiscounted ~ year oron second tothe  Camyjing undiscounted yearoron second tothe
amount  cashfow  demand year fifth year amount  cashfow  demand year fithyear
AORERE  R-ER g=% AORER  R-ER £=5
FESE Zefie S@AE  £2F  FIF  REGE REERE  dBMR  F-F  £Rf
RMB0OO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'00  RMB'000
ARETRL ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETL ARETI
Trade payables FEWEZER 60,763 60,763 60,763 = = 6,859 6,859 6,859 - -
Bils payables 2R 21,000 21,000 21,000 = - 21000 21,000 21,000 = =
Other payablesand - Eo/E5URR
acorued charges  JERTER 12662 12662 12662 - - 88T 887 887 - -
Borrowings #8 319628 378098 336286 42,562 200 818162 376344 334443 41901 =
4053 472,523 429,711 42,562 200 354,868 413060 371,159 41,901 =
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R T MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZEZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

40. R EERBUR (8)

POLICIES (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) REESER (&)
2007 —ETAF
Group Company
£H )
Total Inthe Total Inthe
contractual  Within one Inthe  third year contractual ~ Within one Inthe  third year
Carrying  undiscounted ~ yearoron second tothe  Camyjing undscounted  yearoron second tothe
amount  cashfow  demand year  fith year amount  cashfow  demand year fifth year
AORERE  R-ER F=% SORER  RER £=5
FHSE FeLRE  IRAE 2% £0E  RESE RelRE  IRAE F2F 0%
RMB'0O0  RMB'00  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0O  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARETRL ARETL ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETL ARET:
Trade payables ERESER 4387 64387 64387 - - u579 2519 21579 - -
Bils payables ERZE 18,300 18,300 18,300 - - 18,300 18,300 18,300 - -
Other payablesand ~ EL{fyfER778
accruedcharges  RIERTER 19214 19074 19274 - - 12478 12478 12478 - =
Borrowings f&E 338895 366,746 247,106 94,245 165395 337,926 365631 246639 9,779 16,213
440856 458707 349,067 94,245 165395 390283 407,988 298,99 9,779 16,213
(v) Fairvalue v) 2A¥E

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because of the immediate
or short term maturity of these financial assets and
liabilities. The carrying amount of the non-current
portion of borrowings approximates its fair value since
the directors consider that their interest rates are
close to the prevailing market rates of similar financial
instruments.

@ Launch Tech Company Limited JF&IIT TAERHZ AR (D B IR A R

AEEZEMEERERAEL
AFEEEREELEERND
A AzEesmEERAEDA
RN A BIE - & FERN
Moz EEEEEAFERS
RAREEA/ENXERALUS
BTAZRITHHHREL



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(vi)j Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2008 and
2007 may be categorised as follows. See notes 3.14
and 3.20 for explanations about how the category
of financial instruments affects their subsequent
measurement.

(@)  Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents ReRHEEEY
Loan and receivables B R EWGRIA
Trade receivables FEWE 5 B8R
Bills receivables W EE
Other receivables E A EUGRIA R IR

and deposits

Amount due from ] AN USE

an associate

Pledged bank deposits B2 BITFER

(vi)

40. BT E R IR RIBER (48)

BERAsEREEREEHE

AEBR_ZEZEN\FR_ZTT L
FE+-_A=+—HERNS@E
EXBERASEAIZATER
g5 o B2HEMWFES.14 % 38.20
THRem T BB EHE
STERERE o

@ THEE

2008 2007
—EE\F ZTELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRE  ARMTR

97,583 175,203
238,734 251,582
1,433 2,510
158,545 135,893
3,159 493
21,000 15,669
520,454 581,350
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. MR EE R BUER (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
(vi) Summary of financial assets and liabilities by (i) ZERESEHEEREBHRE
category (Continued) (%)
(b)  Financial liabilities b)) EHEE
2008 2007

—EENF —EELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETITT ARETT
Financial liabilities at B HEAAGREZSRBE
amortised cost:

Trade payables BB SRR 60,763 64,387
Bills payables FER =& 21,000 18,300

Other payables and HAb BT FRIA
accrued charges NERTE A 12,662 19,274
Borrowings BE 319,628 338,895
414,053 440,856

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 4. BXREBEHRERER

PROCEDURES

The Group’s capital management objectives are: REEZERNEEERER

()  to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going () BRASEEBIEAFELEE
concern; BEAC B R B

(i)  to provide an adequate return to shareholders; iy FMRERETEER

(i)  to support the Group’s sustainable growth; and (i) ZRHAEENFEER X

(v)  to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers (iv) REERHAIEETHE ORI
and acquisitions. oA -

e Launch Tech Company Limited &I TAERHZ AR B IR A R



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #HEZ—ZTZN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 4. EXEBHERER (F)
PROCEDURES (Continued)

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion to REE IR E RS & ISR LLIIFE E A
its overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital SRR R o ANEBIRL AR
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes FEEEENRRSFEERENERBL
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the EH A -

underlying assets.

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the balance sheet REZERFEERBERLERNT :

date was as follows:

2008 2007
—EE\F  BTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE  ARMTE

Current liabilities wREAE
Trade payables FERNE S RN 60,763 64,387
Bills payables ENEE 21,000 18,300
Other payables and accrued charges HAbfETRIA R EET & A 12,662 19,274
Current portion of borrowings BB ZmEE D 278,865 233,323
373,290 335,284
Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Borrowings BE 40,763 105,572
Total debt RIEIH 414,053 440,856
Add: Proposed dividend m: EZERE 12,072 30,180
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B REMREEEY (97,583) (175,203)
Net debt HEIE 328,542 295,833
Total equity BRE LS 506,106 523,558
Less: Proposed dividend B BRI E (12,072) (30,180)
Adjusted capital R E R 494,034 493,378
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio EREREES S RN =S 67% 60%
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Financial Summary
BB E

Consolidated Income Statement

meaWEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“TT)\F  ZEERLF ZEESNF —TERF  _TINR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETr ARET:
Revenue e 438,554 412,463 304,211 342,586 217,627
Cost of sales HERA (229,196) (183,766) (141,283) (190,219 (144,687)
Gross profit EA 209,358 228,697 162,928 152,367 132,940
Other income HA 29,184 23,650 19,831 38,157 21,392
Selling expenses HERY (71,869) (74,284) (64,909) (69,513) (35,056)
Administrative expenses THER (61,346) (44,582) (37,708) (44,854) (47,055)
Research and development expenses &R (17,212) (16,027) (12,853) (8,500) (8,008)
Other operating expenses HEi ez (38,005) (30,087) (19,085) (15,305) (17,164)
Finance costs BRA (26,979) (23,166) (8,147) (11,126) (8,432)
Share of results of an associate Eh—EEetaEE (7,121) (2,759) (961) - -
Gain on deemed disposal of interest in REHE—HAEE AR
an associate a2 W 4,244 = = = =
Profit before income tax BRATS B ADGRA 20,170 61,448 39,096 41,226 38,617
Income tax (expense)/credit FEH (i) /8% (7,339) (101) 2,033 (4,097) 1,085
Profit for the year REERF 12,831 61,347 41,129 37,129 39,702
Dividends RE 12,072 30,180 19,530 19,530 18,200
RMB RVB RMB RMB RVB
ARE AREK ARE ARE ARE
Earnings per share for profit ARRREE#R
attributable to the equity holders of B8 AE
the Company during the year ESP vl
- Basic -BEX 21cents?  109cents?  7Acents?h  T.dcents?  7.6cents?

Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEEAER
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“TTN\E “TTF NS —ITHE “TIEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETFRT
Total assets BEE 920,171 964,414 778,798 614,758 779,406
Total liabilities BEE (414,065) (440,856) (359,639) (277,238) (459,653)
Minority interests DEREER - - = = (339)
Shareholder’s equity BRRER 506,106 523,558 419,159 337,520 319,414
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of
Launch Tech Company Limited (the “Company”) will be held at the
conference room, 9th Floor, Office Block, Launch Industrial Park,
North of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
the PRC at 10:00 a.m. on 18 June 2009 Thursday for the following
purposes:

To pass the following matters as ordinary resolutions:

1. To consider and pass the Directors’ Report for the year
2008;

2. To consider and pass the Supervisory Committee’s
Report for the year 2008;

3. To consider and pass the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year 2008;

4.  To consider and pass the resolution of final dividend
distribution for the year 2008;

5. To consider and pass plans to re-appoint Directors and
Supervisors;

6. To consider and pass plans to re-appoint Grant
Thornton as independent auditors of the Company for
the year 2009 and to authorise the board of Directors
to fix their remunerations;

7.  Tohandle any other matters.

ZESE AR AR AR (A
RADEBER_ZZANFARATN\B(EH
M) EF+RERERBERIITRERERIRS
MIXRAMABIETATERRAENE
SREOMRRABAFAG - FEUB TIF
17

N RIRZRFBIBAIA NFIE

1. BRLBBARTD_ZTENFE
EFgWmEE

2. %%Iﬁiﬂ$ﬁ7 TENFE
Eﬁggfﬁ I:l

3. THRAUBBARFNEMEBARR
—TEN\FEZEEREANE
W

4. FZVBB_TTN\FERAR
g/\ga*$$

5 BEHUTRBEMSERES:

6. *%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁi@%i’:}%ﬂaﬁﬁﬂi”ﬁ
FEARB ZEENFEBILIZE
MirEEEEe AT HBMEN S
=

7. REEMEMER-
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II. To pass the following matters as special resolutions:

1. To consider and resolve that, subject to the approval
of China Securities Regulatory Commission and/or
other relevant statutory authorities in the People’s
Republic of China and/or the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the
proposed allotment and issue of new H shares and/or
domestic shares, the board of Directors be authorised:

(@ toissue and/or place H shares and/or domestic
Shares within a period of 12 months from the
date of this resolution, provided that the total
number of H shares and/or domestic shares to
be placed and/or issued shall not exceed 20%
(the “20% Limit”) of the number of H shares and/
or domestic shares of the Company in issue
respectively;

(b)  subject to the 20% Limit, to decide the number
of H shares and/or domestic shares to be placed
and/or issued and to deal with any matter arising
from or related to the placing or issue of the new

shares mentioned above;

@ Launch Tech Company Limited &I T TAEEHE AR B BR A 7]
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to amend, in accordance with the increase in
registered capital of the Company, the relevant
articles contained in the Articles of Association in
relation to the registered capital of the Company
and any other articles that require corresponding
amendments; and

if any chronological variation of the wordings or
numbering of the articles contained in the Articles
of Association of the Company is necessary
upon application to the companies examination
and approval authority authorised by the
State Council and China Securities Regulatory
Commission for examination and approval, to
make corresponding amendments to the Articles
of Association as required by such authority and
China Securities Regulatory Commission.

By order of the Board

Launch Tech Company Limited

Liu Xin

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC

31 March 2009
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Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to
appoint one or more than one proxy to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy
need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any,
under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such authority, must be
deposited at (i) the principal place of business in the PRC of the Company, at
9th floor, Launch Industrial Park, North of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang Longgang
District, Shenzhen, the PRC (for holders of domestic shares of the Company);
or (i) the Company’s H share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong (for holders of H shares of the Company), not less than 24 hours
before the time for holding the meeting or appointed time of voting.

Shareholders or their proxies shall present proofs of identities when attending
the AGM.

The Registrar of members will be closed from 18 May 2009 to 18 June 2009,
both days inclusive. All transfers accompanied by relevant share certificates
must be lodged with Company’s H share registrar not later than 4:30 p.m. on
15 May 2009.

Shareholders entitled to attend the AGM are requested to deliver the reply
slip for attendance to (i) the registered office of the Company (for holders of
domestic shares of the Company); or (i) the Company’s H share registrar (for
holders of H shares of the Company) before 26 May 2009.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xin (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Jun (Chief executive officer)
Professor Wang Xue Zhi

Non-executive Director
Ms. Liu Yong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu

Professor Hu Zi Zheng

Mr. Yim Hing Wah

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Hou Wen Tao
Mr. Guo Jian Yuan
Mr. Wang Xi Lin

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Liu Chun Ming, FCCA

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Liu Chun Ming, FCCA

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu
Professor Hu Zi Zheng
Mr. Yim Hing Wah

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Jun
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Liu Jun
Mr. Liu Chun Ming, FCCA

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton

13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
26th Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

ZHONG LUN LAW FIRM

12-13/F, Building 1,

China Merchants Tower,

No. 118 Jianguo Road,

Chaoyang District, Beijing 100022,
People’s Republic of China

Suite 17-D, 17/F,

Shenzhen Development Bank Tower,

5047 Shennan Road East, Shenzhen 518001,
People’s Republic of China
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank Of China Shenzhen Branch
Agricultural Bank of China Shenzhen Cbd Branch
Shenzhen Development Bank Co., Ltd.

of Shekou Shenzhen Branch
Gongdong Development Bank of Shenzhen Branch
Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited Shenzhen Branch

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Xin Yang Building

Bagua Number Four Road
Futian District

Shenzhen, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Launch Industrial Park
North of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
the PRC

Launch Shanghai Base
No. 661 Baian Road, Angtin Zhen, Jiading District, Shanghai,
the PRC
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Room 1801, 18th Floor
Wing On Central Building
26 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

8196

WEBSITE

www.cnlaunch.com

BOOK CLOSE DATE FOR ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING AND FINAL DIVIDEND

- From 18 May 2009 to 18 June 2009, both inclusive.

- All transfers accompanied by relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s H Share registrar no later than
4:30 p.m. on 15 May 2009.
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